
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of December 4, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on proposed amendments to the City’s FY2024 Budget.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 12/05/2023)  
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.  
 
c) Staff comments.  
 
d) Public comments.  
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City's FY2024 Budget. 

Old Business 

3. Pass Ordinance #3046, amending Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to installation of post indicator valves, upon its third & final consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

4. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of December 4, 2023 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Youth Commission Update. 
b) Human Rights Commission Annual Report. 
c) Grow Cedar Valley Update. 

5. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Rick Mott, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

b) Jerry Bjerke, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 
c) Julie Gardner, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 
d) Nate Gruber, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 
e) Andrew Tink, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 

6. Receive and file the following resignations of members from Boards and Commissions: 
a) Robert Wright, Human Rights Commission. 

7. Receive and file Reformatted and Renumbered Administrative Policies. 

8. Receive and file the Abstract of Votes for the November 7, 2023 Municipal Election. 

9. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Rancho Chico, 618 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

10. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

11. Resolution approving and adopting CFD 1007: Admin Policy - Standard Municipal Index 
Management. 

12. Resolution approving and adopting CFD 1020: Admin Policy - Formatting of City Policies. 

13. Resolution designating authorized signatories for financial accounts and vehicles of the City. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing an Agreement with Brycer, LLC, relative to compliance 
administration, including acceptance of electronic compliance filings and collecting filing fees. 

15. Resolution approving and adopting an amendment to the FY24 Fee Schedule relative to establishing 
fees for the filing of reports with the City’s third-party administrator relative to Fire Code compliance. 
(contingent upon approval of the previous item) 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Alex 
Miller relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Amanda 
Stout relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Amber 
Wegner relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Amelia 
Gotera relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Bret 
Miller relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Caitlyn 
Bardle relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Casey 
Slack relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Chad 
McKinzie relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Jaylin 
Vander Wiel relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Leah 
Runyan relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Karin 
Desnoyers relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Mary 
Ingamells relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

28. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Rachel 
Heine relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

29. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Rachael 
"Rose" Smith relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

30. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Salina 
Gavin relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

31. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Sara 
Fitzgerald relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

32. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with 
Stephanie Fever relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

33. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Services Agreement with Susan 
Rolinger relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

34. Resolution approving the final plat of Ashworth North Subdivision. 

35. Resolution approving the repair of one pump at 17th Street Lift Station and the purchase of two 
pumps at Cedar Heights Lift Station 

36. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC for additional design 
services relative to the Union Road Reconstruction Project. 

37. Resolution setting January 2, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the proposed amendment to the 
Land Use Map by changing the designation from Low Density Residential Use, Greenways and 
Floodplain Use, and Neighborhood Commercial & Mixed Use to Low Density Residential Use and 
adjust the Greenways and Floodplain Use of property located North of Aldrich Elementary School 
and South of West Greenhill Road. 

38. Resolution setting January 2, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from R-1, 
Residential District & MU, Mixed Use Residential to RP, Planned Residence District of property 
located North of Aldrich Elementary School and South of West Greenhill Road. (contingent upon 
approval of the previous item) 

Allow Bills and Claims 

39. Allow Bills and Claims for December 18, 2023. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, DECEMBER 4, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
SIMON HARDING, MAYOR PRO TEM, PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:05 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse (via electronic), Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Pro 
Tem Harding led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
54557 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of November 20, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54558 - The Mayor Pro Tem then asked if there were any agenda revisions. City Clerk 

Kerr noted that there were scrivener’s errors in items #17 and #18 on the 
Resolution Calendar and read the resolutions as corrected noting that item #17 
should read “the transfer of funds from the Storm Water Fund to the Street 
Construction Fund” and #18 should read “transfer of funds from the Street 
Construction Fund to the Street Repair Fund”. Kerr also noted that “Bond” was 
being removed from item #17 as the wrong fund was referenced, and new 
documents will be uploaded to the website. 

 
54559 - Elana Aldrich, Cedar Falls, commented on safety concerns at the intersection of 

1st Street and Union Road. 
 
  Jim Sheerer distributed pictures of the recent accident at 1st Street and Union 

Road, in which his daughter was injured, and asked that immediate action be 
taken to make the intersection safer. 

 
  Sarah Tovia, Cedar Falls, commented on the recent accident she was involved 

in, at the intersection of 1st Street and Union Road, and requested action be 
taken to address safety concerns at the intersection. 

 
  Danielle Morris, Cedar Falls, also commented on safety concerns at the 1st 

Street and Union Road intersection and requested a safety study. 
 
  Reverend Michael Blackwell, Cedar Falls, referenced Nelson Mandela and the 

end of apartheid, and poverty throughout the country. 
 
  Eashaan Vajpeyi, representing the Concerned Citizens of College Hill, 

commented on developments on College Hill, parking, concerns, the College Hill 
Vision Plan and form-based zoning, and requested a review of the current 
system. 

   
54560 -     Councilmembers agreed by Consensus to Councilmember Sire’s request to 

suspend the rules and allow a referral at this time. 
 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

    Following comments by City Attorney Rogers and Councilmembers Sires and 
Harding, it was moved by Dunn and seconded by Schultz to refer to staff to study 
the Union Road and 1st Street intersection for safety, and implement immediate 
improvements, and if feasible to have an item on the next agenda. Following 
questions by Councilmembers Sires, deBuhr, Schultz, Harding, and Jim Sheerer, 
and responses by City Administrator Gaines and City Attorney Rogers, the 
motion carried unanimously.  

     
54561 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3046, 

amending Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to installation of post indicator valves, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor Pro Tem 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54562 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed, and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and 
Commissions: 
a) Hannah Crisman, Planning & Zoning Commission. 

 Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of October 2023. 

 Approve the application of Great Wall Chinese Restaurant, 2125 College Street, 
Suite D. for a cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class B retail 
alcohol - renewal. 
b) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - 
renewal. 
c) Golf Lab, 201 Washington Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
d) Lifestyle Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
e) Zury’s Taco Bar, 2214 College Street, Class C retail alcohol - new. 

 Motion carried unanimously.   

54563 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Schultz that the following resolutions be 
introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #23,403, approving and authorizing execution of a Business 

Associate Agreement with RxBenefits, Inc. relative to the City's prescription drug 
benefits plan. 

 Resolution #23,404, approving and adopting a job classification for the position of 
Construction Project Manager in the Engineering Division. 

 Resolution #23,405, approving and adopting a revised job classification for the 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

position of Principal Engineer in the Engineering Division. 

 Resolution #23,406, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
cleanup/remove debris from the property located at 1321 Main Street. 

 Resolution #23,407, approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay 
Zoning District site plan for modification of a parking area at 2704 College Street. 

 Resolution #23,408, approving and authorizing submission of a Certified Local 
Government (CLG) Grant Application to the State Historic Preservation Office 
relative to a survey for the Overman Park Neighborhood. 

 Resolution #23,409, approving the preliminary plat of Autumn Ridge 12th 
Addition. 

 Resolution #23,410, approving the final plat of Autumn Ridge 12th Addition.  

 Resolution #23,411, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Vieth Construction Corp. for the 2023 Alley Reconstruction Project, and 
approving and authorizing the transfer of funds from the Street Construction 
Fund to the Storm Water Bond Fund. 

 Resolution #23,412, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Blacktop Service Co. for the 2023 Seal Coat Project, and approving and 
authorizing the transfer of funds from the Street Repair Fund to the Street 
Construction Fund. 

. Resolution #23,413, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 3 to the Professional Services Agreement with AECOM Technical 
Services, Inc. for design services relative to the North Cedar Heights Area 
Reconstruction Project – Phase II. 

 Resolution #23,414, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for design services 
relative to the South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension Project. 

 Resolution #23,415, setting December 18, 2023 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed amendments to the City’s FY2024 Budget. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor Pro Tem put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor Pro Tem then declared Resolutions #23,403 through 
#23,415 duly passed and adopted. 

54564 -  It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Schultz that a Resolution approving and 
adopting a job classification for the position of Policy & Administration Specialist 
in the Administration Division, be adopted. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Ganfield, Kruse, Harding, Dunn, Schultz, and deBuhr, and UNI 
Student Liaison Hackbart, and responses by City Administrator Gaines and 
Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, it was moved by deBuhr 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

and seconded by Dunn to postpone consideration until the January 16, 2024 City 
Council Meeting. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
54565 -  It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the bills and claims of 

December 4, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54566 -    Councilmember Sires announced that he will not be at the Reception for 

Outgoing Elected Officials on December 18, 2023, but he will be holding a 
Reception at the Amvets on January 6, 2024, at 5 PM. 

        
54567 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by deBuhr that the meeting be 

adjourned at 8:06 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           __________________________________ 
                                                           Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

7

Item 1.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: December 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FY2024 Budget Amendment 

 
Please find attached the certification resolution for the first FY2024 budget amendment.  
This budget amendment is necessary due to the timing of Main Street Reconstruction 
project.   As the notice shows intergovernmental and miscellaneous revenues, as well as 
cash reserves will offset these expenditures. 
 
Also attached you will find the line-item amendment.  If you have questions regarding the 
amendment or budget process, please feel free to contact Jennifer or myself. 
 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
  

8

Item 2.



9

Item 2.



budam24 No1.xls

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2024 BUDGET
FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

           ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2024 FY2024 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Street Repair 242-1240-431.9845 Main Street Reconstruction $5,800,000.00 $19,800,000.00 ($14,000,000.00) 242-0000-104.0000 Street Repair Cash Reserves $10,000,000.00 Over expenditures due to timing of capital projects and timing of reimbursements offset from  miscellaneous revenues

242-0000-341.0500 Federal/State Funding Revenue $2,000,000.00 future federal grant funding and cash reserves.

242-0000-371.0100 Misc. Receipts $2,000,000.00

($14,000,000.00) $14,000,000.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $14,000,000.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY F.B.O. $0.00

BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM

10

Item 2.



 
 
 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PUBLIC SAFETY – FIRE RESCUE DIVISION 

4600 South Main Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Phone: 319-273-8690 

Fax: 319-268-5196 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM  

To:  Honorable Mayor Green and Cedar Falls City Council 

CC:  Matt Krueger, Lieutenant Fire Inspections 

From:  John Zolondek, Fire Chief 

Date:   November 10, 2023 

Re:  Fire Code Change 

 

 
In the past year Lt Krueger and I have been working through incidences regarding the installation of post 

indicator valves, (PIV), at various building projects in the community. The PIV is part of a fire sprinkler 

system intended to shut off the fire sprinkler system. The post is a part of the valve assembly that has a 

clearly visible sign inside indicating whether the valve is OPEN or CLOSED.  

 

Following research with several outside agencies including the State Fire Marshal Office and National 

Fire Protection Codes and Standards I would like to propose the following change to the current City 

Code Section 9-87.   

 

This change is intended to decrease the encumbrance on property owners, construction companies and 

sprinkler installers when installing a fire sprinkler shutoff valve.  We have had many instances where a 

request was made for a variance due to the impossibility of installing the sprinkler shut off valve 100 feet 

from the building due to lot size and/or configuration of the building and parking areas.  This change in 

City Code of Ordinances would allow for better compliance with City Code and fall in line with 

nationally recognized codes and standards such as NFPA 13 Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler 

Systems.   

 

I respectfully request that Cedar Falls City Council approve this change.  

 

11

Item 3.



 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 9-87, CONNECTION TO WATER MAIN, IN 

ARTICLE IV, AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS, OF CHAPTER 9, FIRE 

PREVENTION AND PROTECTION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO MODIFY THE DISTANCE FROM BUILDINGS 

THAT AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHUT OFF VALVES MAY BE 

LOCATED, AND PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS ALONG WITH MINOR NON-

SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                 Section 9-87. Connection to Water Mains, in Article IV, Automatic Sprinkler Systems, 

of Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 9-87, Connection to Water 

Mains, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 9-87. - Connection to water main. 

(a)  Any person desiring to open a connection with a water main which is used for city fire 
protection, for the purpose of supplying automatic fire sprinkler equipment, shall have such 
connection made under the direction and subject to the approval of the chief of the fire 
divisiondepartment. 

(b)  Supply connection for sprinkler system shall be adequate for the building size and 
contents. 

(c)  All connections for supplying automatic fire sprinkler equipment shall be equipped with a 
shutoff valve which shall be located in a place of easy access. and at a distance of not less 
than 100 feet from the building so equipped.  Listed indicating valves at each connection into a 
building shall be at least 40 feet from the building.  Exceptions to the 40-feet requirement may 
be granted if inadequate space exists or other conditions make it impractical to comply as 
determined by the fire chief. 

(d)  The keys to the shutoff valve of each connection for the purpose of supplying automatic fire 
sprinkler equipment shall be stored in the Knox Box for the property and accessible to the chief 
of the fire operations division, who shall have authority to close such valves whenever the 
chiefhe deems it necessary. 

(e)  Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this article by not complying with the 
provisions of this section in making connection for automatic fire sprinkler equipment, or who 
permits any person to make such connection for him without complying with this section, shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and be punished, on conviction thereof, pursuant 
to section 1-8. Such fines are enforceable by civil action. 

(Code 2017, § 11-79; Ord. No. 2137, § 1, 4-22-1996; Ord. No. 2537, § 6, 8-8-2005) 

 

Formatted: No underline

12

Item 3.

https://library.municode.com/ia/cedar_falls/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH1GEPR_S1-8GEPEPESCVI


INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

                                                                                               

                                                                               ___________________________ 

                                                                                         Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline DanielsenKim Kerr, MCMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt

13

Item 3.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3046 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 9-87, CONNECTION TO WATER MAIN, IN 

ARTICLE IV, AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS, OF CHAPTER 9, FIRE 

PREVENTION AND PROTECTION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO MODIFY THE DISTANCE FROM BUILDINGS 

THAT AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHUT OFF VALVES MAY BE 

LOCATED, AND PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS ALONG WITH MINOR NON-

SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

                 Section 9-87. Connection to Water Mains, in Article IV, Automatic Sprinkler Systems, 

of Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 9-87, Connection to Water 

Mains, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 9-87. - Connection to water main. 

(a)  Any person desiring to open a connection with a water main which is used for city fire 
protection, for the purpose of supplying automatic fire sprinkler equipment, shall have such 
connection made under the direction and subject to the approval of the chief of the fire division. 

(b)  Supply connection for sprinkler system shall be adequate for the building size and 
contents. 

(c)  All connections for supplying automatic fire sprinkler equipment shall be equipped with a 
shutoff valve which shall be located in a place of easy access.  Listed indicating valves at each 
connection into a building shall be at least 40 feet from the building.  Exceptions to the 40-feet 
requirement may be granted if inadequate space exists or other conditions make it impractical 
to comply as determined by the fire chief. 

(d)  The keys to the shutoff valve of each connection for the purpose of supplying automatic fire 
sprinkler equipment shall be stored in the Knox Box for the property and accessible to the chief 
of the fire operations division, who shall have authority to close such valves whenever the chief 
deems it necessary. 

(e)  Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this article by not complying with the 
provisions of this section in making connection for automatic fire sprinkler equipment, or who 
permits any person to make such connection for him without complying with this section, shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and be punished, on conviction thereof, pursuant 
to section 1-8. 

(Code 2017, § 11-79; Ord. No. 2137, § 1, 4-22-1996; Ord. No. 2537, § 6, 8-8-2005) 

 

 

14

Item 3.

https://library.municode.com/ia/cedar_falls/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH1GEPR_S1-8GEPEPESCVI


INTRODUCED:    November 20, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  November 20, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  December 4, 2023   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI:       

ADOPTED:          

                                  

                                                              

                                                                                 ___________________________ 

                                                                                 Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

Item 3.



 
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

December 4, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 6:00 p.m. on December 4, 2023, with 
the following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, 
Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from 
all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Committee of the Whole: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Committee of the 
Whole Agenda, Youth Commission Update, and introduced Keegan Herzman.  Mr. Herzman 
provided a brief overview of the structure of Waterloo’s Youth City Council which started as an 
unaffiliated organization, no use of staff time or City funds, with the goal of becoming an official 
commission of the City.  Mr. Herzman recommended the same structure for Cedar Falls and 
stated Mayor Green had agreed to work with the group.  Councilmember deBuhr requested 
Mayor Green send his materials to Councilmembers.    
 
Finance and Business Operations: 
Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Finance and 
Business Operations Agenda, Human Rights Commission Annual Report, and introduced HRC 
Chair Sonja Bock.  Ms. Bock presented a brief history of the HRC and its focus on strengthening 
the connection with the Iowa Civil Rights Commission.  Ms. Bock reviewed the mission 
statement, philosophies, primary commitment, and principal responsibilities of the HRC.  Ms. 
Bock expressed appreciation for the communication with City staff and liaisons.  She provided a 
summary of each subcommittees’ members, purposes, goals, and tasks; explained the 
inquiry/concern/complaint process; gave highlights of activities, events, and conferences 
attended and hosted.  Ms. Bock highlighted former commissioner Spencer Luvert’s years on the 
Commission, including being awarded a Distinguished Service Award by Mayor Green in June 
of 2023, and also provided information on new Commission members and City staff support and 
liaisons, including Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Specialist Chelsie Luhring.  She presented 
upcoming commission goals.  Councilmembers and UNI Student Liaison thanked Ms. Bock and 
the HRC, noted diversity in student population at UNI and asked about plans to include the 
student population; Ms. Bock responded the HRC would like UNI students to be involved, and 
high school also and that there is no current plan but it is something the HRC will be pursuing. 
 
Community Development Committee: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Community 
Development Committee Agenda, Grow Cedar Valley Update, and introduced Grow Cedar 
Valley CEO Cary Darrah.  Ms. Darrah gave an overview of the year and introduced Lisa Skubal, 
VP of Economic Development.  Ms. Skubal provided an update on recent activities and 
initiatives; business attraction through lead generation efforts, making connections with 
companies, and site selection consultants; gave overview of events attended and exhibits 
presented including Site Selectors Guild; explained upgrades to USA Match Making Portal used 
for site selection; GCV shared new drone footage of the West Viking Industrial Park for 
advertising with IEDA; gave overview of opportunities and projects; provided information on 
support of local businesses.  Councilmember deBuhr asked how many of the projects were in 
Cedar Falls; Ms. Skubal responded that only projects generated in Cedar Falls were reflected.  
Ms. Skubal introduced Stephanie Detweiler, Director of Workforce and Talent.  Ms. Detweiler 

16

Item 4.



provided information on a new data source, Lightcast, used for economic development and 
workforce professions to define key industries in the Cedar Valley - advanced manufacturing, 
distribution and transportation, healthcare, and finance and insurance - with the goal to create 
programs around those industries.  She stated the highest in-demand occupations in the Cedar 
Valley are industrial and mechanical engineers and nurse practitioners; GCV will focus on 
building good relationships with higher education institutes with those programs.  Ms. Detweiler 
gave an overview of the Workforce Advisory Committee and other boards she works with to 
keep track of what’s being done and avoid project redundancy.  Ms. Detweiler introduced Nicole 
Sallis, Director of Communications.  Ms. Sallis gave an overview of use of Lightcast for 
recruitment locations; gave an update on the Live the Vally marketing initiative, highlighting 
career advancement opportunities as well as things to do in the area; and gave an update on 
the influencer marketing campaign.  She stated GCV is continuing their place-making effort and 
continuing collaboration with Livability magazine which recently highlighted Cedar Falls.  Ms. 
Sallis introduced Mike Mallaro, chair of the GCV Board.  Mr. Mallaro stated GCV has the broad 
support of the entire economic community represented in both membership and the board of 
directors. He stated their overall focus is on regionalization while specific to the Cedar Valley 
and collaboration with multiple parties for incoming and growing/expanding companies.  Mr. 
Mallaro thanked the City, Councilmembers, and City staff for their support.  Councilmembers 
thanked Ms. Darrah for her years of service. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant 

17

Item 4.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 
 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 12, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Reappointments to the Board of Electrical Appeals 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §7-50(b)(A) 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a), I hereby make the following 

reappointments to the Board of Electrical Appeals, beginning January 1, 2024: 

• Mr. Rick Mott - Term Ends December 31, 2027  

• Mr. Jerry Bjerke - Term Ends December 31, 2027   

2. Please contact me with any questions or concerns about these appointments. 

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

  City Building Official 

 

### 

 

18

Item 5.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET | CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 
 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Reappointment to the Board of Mechanical Appeals (CFD 9286) 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §7-414(19) 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a), I hereby make the following 

reappointment to the Board of Mechanical Appeals, beginning January 1, 2024: 

• Ms. Julie Gardner - Term Ends December 31, 2027  

2. Please contact me with any questions or concerns about this appointment. 

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

  City Building Official 

 

### 

 

 

 

19

Item 5.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 
 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Reappointment to the Board of Plumbing Appeals (CFD 9306) 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §7-170(13) 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a), I hereby make the following 

reappointments to the Board of Mechanical Appeals, beginning January 1, 2024: 

• Mr. Nate Gruber - Term Ends December 31, 2027  

• Mr. Andrew Tink - Term Ends December 31, 2027  

2. Please contact me with any appointment questions or concerns. 

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

  City Building Official 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

20

Item 5.



21

Item 6.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET | CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 12, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Reformatted and Renumbered Administrative Policies 

 REF: City Code of Ordinances, Section 2-218 (5)(c) – Administrator Powers & Duties 

1. I am enclosing for receive-and-file the reformatted Administrative Policies, which now use 

the numbering of the Standard Municipal Index.  These documents are as follows: 

 

 CFD 1001.19 – Permanent Employee Hiring 

 CFD 1002.15 – Policy Recommendations to City Council 

 CFD 1003.15 – Risk Management Settlements and Payment 

 CFD 1004.15 – Pesticide Application 

 CFD 1005.22 – Public Record Requests 

 CFD 1006.15 – Approval of City Contracts 

 CFD 1008.19 – Cash Management and Investments 

 CFD 1009.15 – Placement of Banners 

 CFD 1010.19 – City Attorney Compensation and Assignments 

 CFD 1011.21 – Private Use of Public Facilities 

 CFD 1012.15 – Guidelines for Government - Educational Access & Programming 

 CFD 1013.15 – Compensation for Cable TV Services 

 CFD 1017.06 – Confidential Emergency Preparedness Information 

 CFD 1018.22 – Leave Donation Program 

 CFD 1019.15 – Litigation Hold 

 CFD 1021.15 – Public Records 

 CFD 1022.15 – Employee Assignment of a City Vehicle 

 CFD 1023.15 – Use of the City Logo 

 CFD 1024.19 – Social Media Access and Use 

 CFD 1025.21 – Security Cameras on City Property 

 CFD 1026.21 – Public Building Access   

2. No substantive changes have been made which would require formal council re-approval; 

for this reason, they are being forwarded for receive-and-file only. 

22

Item 7.



3. To explain gaps in numbering, 1007 and 1020 are new policies being sent to the City 

Council for approval.  1014 does not yet exist; 1015 and 1016 are policy manuals provided 

by a medical third party, and would not be appropriate for reformatting.  

4. Please contact the City Administrator or me with any questions with this reformatting and 

renumbering as part of the Standard Municipal Index.   Mr. Gaines has reviewed the 

renumbering and reformatting and has expressed no concerns.  

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

  City Clerk 

 

### 

 

 

 

23

Item 7.



CFD 1001.19:  Admin Policy – Permanent Employee Hiring   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1001: Admin Policy – Permanent Employee Hiring 
Approved December 31, 2019 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The City of Cedar Falls annually adopts an appropriations and payroll resolution. These actions 
establish the maximum employment level for full-time and permanent part-time personnel in each 
division and department of the City. 

POLICY:  

The City’s policy regarding hiring of permanent part-time and full-time employees is to establish a 
staffing level within each department commensurate with the work level existent and predicted. If, 
for any reason, a departmental work level expands or contracts significantly for a duration to 
exceed four (4) months, then the Department Director must make a recommendation to the City 
Administrator concerning hiring, layoff or transfer of employees.  The intent of this policy is to keep 
all employees gainfully employed with meaningful work, which provides professional and/or 
technical growth over their tenure.  The procedure uses a review process for all new, vacated, 
upgraded or downgraded full-time and part-time positions.  

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines. Prior to advertising for any full-time or permanent part-time position, the 
requesting Department Director shall do the following: 

A. A financial evaluation of the employment costs shall be made to determine the availability of 
funds during the short and long term to finance the position.  This evaluation shall consider 
the financial condition of the individual division budget and City fund which supports the 
position, severance costs and revenue impact. 

B. Four employment steps must be evaluated in sequence; directors are required to make a 
concerted effort and to experiment with each step to determine the impact on services. 

1). Step 1: Terminate position. 

2). Step 2: Fill position with part-time labor in the case of a previously full-time position; or 
fill the position with seasonal/temporary labor in the case of a previously permanent 
part-time position. 

3). Step 3: Downgrade position to lowest classification feasible. 

4). Step 4: Fill position at fully authorized classification. 

C. Written justification outlining the impact on services or operations must be provided by the 
Department Director to the City Administrator and other Department Directors.  After their 
approval, the City Administrator has the authority to approve the position if a budgeted 
position.  If a non-budgeted position, the request will be approved by City Council.  

24

Item 7.



CFD 1001.19:  Admin Policy – Permanent Employee Hiring   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

1). Once authorization to fill a position is given, advertisement will start and the testing 
process, if any, will take place. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/1/88, 2/13/89, 11/10/05, 2/9/10, 12/1/15, 12/31/19 

25

Item 7.



CFD 1002.15:  Admin Policy – Policy Recommendations to City Council   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 1 

CFD 1002: Admin Policy – Policy Recommendations to City Council 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of the procedure is to establish an administrative process which coordinates 
recommendations submitted to the City Council related to policy, management or 
administrative matters. 

POLICY:   

City Code Section 2-187(a) describes the position of Mayor in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as 
the City’s chief executive officer. Section 2-218 provides for the position of City Administrator 
in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as the City’s chief administrative officer. The Mayor is 
responsible for the supervision of the City Administrator.  The Mayor and the City 
Administrator shall supervise the administration of all departments of the City and may give 
direction to the Department Directors concerning the functions of the Departments.  

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines. 

A. All recommendations emanating from Departments, which require City Council action shall 
be addressed and forwarded to the City Administrator and Mayor for review and approval 
prior to submission for City Council action.   

B. The Mayor will, upon consultation with the City Administrator and the affected Department 
Director, determine the timing and final disposition before the City Council. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/21/88, 12/1/15 

26

Item 7.



CFD 1003.15:  Admin Policy – Risk Management Settlements and Payments CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 1 

CFD 1003: Admin Policy – Risk Management Settlements and 
Payments 

Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to establish rules and procedures that the Risk Management 
Committee may use to settle and process payment for these claims prior to Council approval 
of the corresponding bill/invoice.   

POLICY:   

There are times that the Risk Management Committee based on advice from the city’s 
insurance professionals and the city’s legal counsel has agreed that it is in the City’s best 
interest to settle certain claims. These claims may involve liability claims, workers 
compensation claims, and other miscellaneous claims.    

PROCEDURES: 

1. Claim settlement greater than or equal to $25,000. 

A. Any claim greater than or equal to $25,000 that the Risk Management Committee has voted 
on and approved, the City Council must be notified of the claim prior to payment.   

B. This notification shall include the basis of the original claim, the circumstances describing 
the claim, the negotiated settlement, and any documentation provided by the city’s 
insurance professional or the city’s legal counsel.   

C. This notification may be via email to the entire city council and mayor.   

D. If there are no objections or concerns expressed by the city council, the Director of Finance 
and Business Operations or Personnel Specialist may forward the settlement claim to 
Financial Services for processing.  This will then be included on the daily list of bills that the 
city council receives at the following council meeting.  

2. Claim settlement less than $25,000.  

A. Any claim less than $25,000 that the Risk Management Committee has voted on and 
approved, the claim may be submitted by the Director of Finance and Business Operations 
or Personnel Specialist to Financial Services for processing without council approval.  

B. This will then be included on the daily list of bills that the city council receives at the 
following council meeting.    

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 12/1/15 

27

Item 7.



CFD 1004.15:  Admin Policy – Pesticide Application CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 5 

CFD 1004: Admin Policy – Pesticide Application 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The intent and purpose of this statement is to define the methods of acquisition, application, 
applicators certification, applicators cholinesterase testing, registry and other practices pertinent to 
effecting the usage of pesticides pursuant to compliances with the Iowa Pesticide Law.   

POLICY:   

Federal and State regulations control the use of pesticides.  This policy is intended to ensure 
compliance by the City with these regulations. 

DEFINITION: 

Pesticide: Any material used to destroy, prevent or control pests and diseases which includes 
insecticides, herbicides, fungicides, nematicides, bactericides, rodenticides, fumigants, avicides, 
and attractants. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Acquisition of Pesticides.  

A. Various pesticides are purchased for application on City-managed properties to be used in 
an integrated pest management system (I.P.M.), which is a philosophy of pest and disease 
control where all available strategies are utilized and optimum results are realized with the 
least amount of environmental impact. 

B. Procedures taken to acquire a pesticide: 

1). Decide if pesticide is needed to control the pest or disease infestation. 

2). A pesticide is then selected for safety to applicator, public and environment. 

3). A price quote is then taken from suppliers and the lowest quote is accepted. 

2. Storage of Pesticides. 

A. As soon as pesticides are delivered they are stored in a separate, state-certified 
containment building where they are locked and posted so that no unauthorized or 
untrained people can gain access to them.   

B. The local emergency teams, such as the Fire Division, are supplied with information on all 
chemicals stored. 

3. Applicator Certification. 

A. To maintain certification, all City applicators are required to demonstrate that they are 
legally qualified and capable by taking and passing examinations given every three years 
by the Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship.  They must also attend mandatory 

28

Item 7.



CFD 1004.15:  Admin Policy – Pesticide Application CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 5 

continuing education seminars of no less than four hours yearly.  This is used to inform 
them of common pests and diseases to be controlled, timing and methods of applications, 
interpretation of labels and labeling information, safety precautions, re-entry restrictions, 
specific procedures to be used in disposal of pesticides and containers and related legal 
responsibilities.   

B. The City of Cedar Falls is on file with the Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship 
with proof of financial responsibility for damage arising from the applications of pesticides. 

4. Application of Pesticides. When spraying of pests or diseases is required, the following 
procedure is observed: 

A. Pest or disease identified. 

B. Determine if pesticide is needed and if so, the appropriate chemical is selected. 

C. The proper equipment is chosen, checked and calibrated for use. 

D. Before pesticides are used, close watch is given to weather conditions.  When high winds, 
temperatures, or moisture conditions are not conducive to spraying of pesticides, schedules 
will be changed to when weather conditions are more accommodating. 

E. Whenever possible, spraying of City-managed property is done when human activity is 
least prevalent. 

F. The pesticide is mixed and applied according to the label recommendation. 

G. The area where pesticides are applied is then posted according to Section 206.19(3) of the 
Code of Iowa. 

H. According to state law, continuing pesticide application records are kept which include: 

1). Area of application. 

2). Total quantity used. 

3). Rate of application. 

4). Temperature, wind direction and speed. 

5). Time and date of application. 

6). Pesticide used. 

I. City employees will use the pre-notification registry when applying pesticides on public 
property. 

J. If the City contracts pesticide spraying on any parks, golf courses, or City-owned properties, 
it will require the contractor to follow all laws and regulations.  The City will also require the 
contractor to use the pre-notification registry available in the Public Records Division of the 
Department of Administrative Services. 

29

Item 7.



CFD 1004.15:  Admin Policy – Pesticide Application CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 5 

5. Public Registry.  

A. The City of Cedar Falls, in its efforts to inform the public, desires to maintain a registry of 
persons who request pre-notification of pesticide applications made to property adjacent to 
their residences.  The registry will be maintained in the Public Records Division, 220 Clay 
Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, with office hours between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. weekdays. 

B. It is the responsibility of those requesting pre-notification to complete the registry form 
annually, beginning January 1st of each year.  The City of Cedar Falls will notify the public 
of the availability of this registry through news releases to the local media. 

C. The Public Records Division will forward, by mail, the registry on the first of each month to 
commercial and public applicators who request it.  Weekly updates of the registry will be 
available each Tuesday morning in the Public Records Division to those applicators who 
wish to view it.  The Public Records Division will maintain a listing of commercial and public 
applicators who have requested to regularly receive the registry. 

D. The City of Cedar Falls Municipal Operations and Programs Department will be responsible 
for notifying those individuals on the registry when applying pesticides on public property, 
parks and open space, and public golf courses in the manner prescribed in (21) Chapter 
45, "Pesticides", Iowa Administrative Code. 

E. It will be the responsibility of the commercial and other public applicators to comply with 
(21) Chapter 45 of the Iowa Administrative Code as it applies to their operations.  The City 
of Cedar Falls is not responsible for any actions of commercial applicators or other public 
applicators or their failure to comply with the provisions of said (21) Chapter 45. 

F. The registry maintained by the City of Cedar Falls is not a requirement of the law, but is an 
attempt to notify citizens of their rights under said section of the Iowa Administrative Code. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 6/6/90, 12/01/15 

  

30

Item 7.



CFD 1004.15:  Admin Policy – Pesticide Application CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 5 

REGISTRY OF PERSONS REQUESTING PRENOTIFICATION OF PESTICIDE APPLICATIONS 
(20___) 

 
I request prenotification of pesticide applications made by or for the City of Cedar Falls to property 
located adjacent to my residence.  I understand that this registry will also be made available to 
private applicators who request to use it for prenotification purposes. 

Address: _____________________________________________________________________ 

Name: ______________________________________________ Date:  ___________________ 

Telephone No. (Daytime) ____________________________________________________ 

The following general description portion should be completed only if your residence is located 
adjacent to a City-owned park, public property or golf course: 

General Description of City-owned Property:  
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

The City of Cedar Falls, or its agents, will appropriately notify individuals who complete this form.  
Said notification will be in compliance with (21) Chapter 45.50(7c, 7d) of the Iowa Administrative 
Code. 

Completion of this form will maintain your name on the City of Cedar Falls' Pesticide Prenotification 
Registry through December 31, 20__.  If you desire to be included on the listing for 200__, you will 
need to complete a new form effective January 1, 20__. 

This registry will also be made available upon request to commercial and other public pesticide 
applicators.  If you desire prenotification regarding pesticide applications adjacent to your property, 
but not being made by or for the City of Cedar Falls, you may complete this form and be included 
on the City's registry.  Thus, your name, address and telephone number will also be provided to 
commercial and other public pesticide applicators who request the City's registry. 

It should be noted that the City of Cedar Falls is only responsible for ensuring prenotification of 
pesticide applications made by or for the City of Cedar Falls.  Therefore, you may wish to consider 
making individual prenotification requests to the various commercial and other public pesticide 
applicators within the community. 

Upon completion of this form, please return to:  

Public Records Division 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

If you have any questions regarding this form, please call the Public Records Division at 273-8600. 

  
31

Item 7.



CFD 1004.15:  Admin Policy – Pesticide Application CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 5 

REGISTRY OF PERSONS REQUESTING PRENOTIFICATION 

OF PESTICIDE APPLICATIONS 

City of Cedar Falls – 20___ 

 

 
Name 

 
Street 

 
Phone 

 
Public Property 
Description 

 
Date 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

32

Item 7.



CFD 1005.22:  Admin Policy – Public Record Requests      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1005: Admin Policy – Public Record Requests 
Approved May 2, 2022 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

This policy is intended to describe the steps necessary to comply with Iowa Open Records laws. 
For the purpose of this policy, the City Clerk or authorized designee shall be designated as 
custodian of the official records for the City of Cedar Falls.  For purposes of this policy a “public 
record” is as defined by state law.  

POLICY:   

Every person shall have the right to examine and copy a public record and to publish or otherwise 
disseminate a public record or the information contained in a public record. Unless otherwise 
provided for by law, the right to examine a public record shall include the right to examine a public 
record without charge while the public record is in the physical possession of the custodian of the 
public record. The right to copy a public record shall include the right to receive photographic 
copies while the public record is in the possession of the custodian of the public record. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines. 

A. All requests for records shall be directed to the custodian of records, with the exception of 
police and fire records, in which case the police chief or fire chief shall be the custodian of 
those records. The custodian of records shall determine which city staff will be involved in 
the retrieval of records based on the scope of the request. 

B. All requests for records shall be submitted in writing or confirmed by the custodian of 
records in writing. The requests shall be specific to ensure that the requester is provided 
with the records being sought. The custodian of records may respond to the requester in 
order to seek clarification if the custodian of records believes the request is vague and/or 
appears to encompass a large amount of records. 

C.  It shall be the policy of the City to respond to most requests for records within 10 business 
days. However, responses to such requests may be delayed as reasonably necessary 
depending on the scope of request and/or determination of confidential records. A 
reasonable delay for this purpose shall not exceed 20 calendar days. 

D. Confidential records, as defined in Iowa Code Chapter 22, shall not be released and shall 
be kept confidential unless ordered by a court or by another person duly authorized to 
release such information. The custodian of records shall consult the city attorney 
concerning requests for records that may be considered confidential records. The 
custodian of records or the city attorney shall inform the requesting party in writing of any 
denial of records due to confidentiality. 

E. The City is not required to create records or reports that do not exist prior to the request. 

F.  In-person examination and/or copying of public records shall be done under the supervision 
33

Item 7.



CFD 1005.22:  Admin Policy – Public Record Requests  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

of the custodian of records or the custodian’s authorized designee during regular office 
hours, 8:00 a.m.  to 5:00 p.m., Monday thru Friday. 

G. Fulfillment of a request for public records may be contingent upon receipt, in advance, of
payment for expenses estimated to be incurred in fulfilling the request. Such estimated
expenses shall be communicated to the requester as soon as practicable, but no later than
10 business days following receipt of the request. Upon fulfillment of the request, the City
shall refund any excess fees collected, or charge the requester for the difference between
the estimate and actual cost of fulfillment, whichever applies.

H. The fee for providing records shall not exceed the actual costs of providing the service.
Actual costs may include the cost of materials as outlined in the City’s current fee schedule
established by the city council, and current wages of staff for time spent directly supervising
examination of, or staff time spent searching, retrieving, determining confidential status,
producing and/or providing copies of public records.

I. Exception: The foregoing policies and procedures shall not be applicable to public records
requests by officers, employees or agents of the City, or of any other governmental entity,
or records requested by subpoena or records required by law to be kept confidential.

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 5/2/22 

34

Item 7.



CFD 1006.15:  Admin Policy – Approval of City Contracts  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1006: Admin Policy – Approval of City Contracts 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE: 

In an effort to comply with Sections 2-10 and 2-599 of the City Code, this policy has been 
developed to ensure that the City Council receives promptly, contracts and agreements which 
have been prepared or approved by the City's legal staff.  This policy is intended to ensure that the 
Legal Services Division, including the Risk Management Committee respond promptly to requests 
of individual departments attempting to process contracts and agreements, and a listing of times 
and dates of receipt and comments made on these contracts are well-documented.  

POLICY: 

In accordance with Sec. 2-10, of the City Code of Ordinances, all contracts and agreements 
entered into by the City shall be in writing and executed by the Mayor, in his official capacity, with 
the corporate seal of the City affixed to, and approved by the City Council, which approval shall be 
endorsed on the contract or agreement by the City Clerk and attested to by his seal and signature. 
The City is not bound by or liable upon any contract or agreement except those contracts or 
agreements entered into and executed in accordance with this section of City Code. Section 2-599 
of the City Code designates the City Attorney as the entity which reviews or prepares all contracts 
and agreements or ordinances for the City Council's approval which are required for use of the City 
or any of its City officers in the discharge of their duties.  

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines.

A. All departments requesting approval on a contract or agreement are required to submit to
the Department of Finance and Business Operations the proposed contract or agreement.
They should be submitted to the City Clerk; the Director of Finance and Business
Operations; to the Personnel Specialist to forward to the Risk Management Committee if
applicable; and to the appropriate city attorney.

B. Within thirty (30) working days, a response will be rendered by each of the entities relative
to the City's liability and legal ramifications associated with the contract or agreement as it
affects City's operations.  The attached form will be utilized to track the approval process
for each contract and agreement, and ensure that each contract or agreement receives City
Council approval by resolution.

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 11/30/90, 12/27/90, 12/1/15 

35

Item 7.



CFD 1006.15:  Admin Policy – Approval of City Contracts      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

AGREEMENT/CONTRACT APPROVAL FORM 
 

 
Contract/Agreement Title:_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose:____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date Rec’d by Finance & Business Operations:_________________ 
 
Date Rec’d by Risk Management:______________  Reviewer: __________ Approved/Denied:________ 
 
Comments and Requested Changes: _____________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date Rec’d by Legal Counsel: ______________ Reviewer:____________   Approved/Denied:_________ 
 
Comments and Requested Changes: _____________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date Rec’d by Financial Services:____________  Reviewer: ___________ Approved/Denied:_________ 
 
Comments and Requested Changes: _____________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
 
Date Filed with City Clerk and Returned to Requesting Department:  ______________________ 
 
Date Approved by City Council:_______________    Resolution Number:___________________ 

 
 

36

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 9 

CFD 1008: Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments 
Approved December 31, 2019 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to insure that the amount of principal invested is protected from loss 
while obtaining maximum cash availability and maximum yield on invested idle cash. The policy 
outlines the respective responsibilities of the City Administrator, Director of Finance and Business 
Operations, and Controller/City Treasurer. 

POLICY:   

The Department of Finance and Business Operations is duly authorized by Ordinance No. 2949 to 
coordinate the investment of idle funds to insure that the City obtains the most attractive yet 
financially sound investment benefits available. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Scope. 

A. The Investment Policy of the City of Cedar Falls shall apply to all operating funds, bond 
proceeds and other funds and all investment transactions involving operating funds, bond 
proceeds and other funds accounted for in the financial statements of the City. Each 
investment made pursuant to this Investment Policy must be authorized by applicable law 
and this written Investment Policy. 

B. The investment of bond funds or sinking funds shall comply not only with this investment 
policy, but also be consistent with any applicable bond resolution. 

C. This Investment Policy is intended to comply with Iowa Code Chapter 12B. 

D. Upon passage and upon future amendment, if any, copies of this Investment Policy shall be 
delivered to all of the following: 

1). The governing body or officer of the City to which the Investment Policy applies. 

2). All depository institutions or fiduciaries for public funds of the City. 

3). The auditor engaged to audit any fund of the City. 

4). In addition, a copy of this Investment Policy shall be delivered to every fiduciary or third 
party assisting with or facilitating investment of the funds of the City. 

2. Delegation of Authority. 

A. The investment duties shall be segregated between three (3) City employees. This 
segregation is intended to provide a system of internal controls and investment practices. 
The controls shall be designed to prevent losses of public funds, to document those officers 
and employees of the City responsible for elements of the investment process and to 
address the capability of investment management. 

37

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 9 

B. Director of Finance and Business Operations: 

1). Maintains an investment schedule that details investment information, including 
investment date, maturity date, principal, interest rate, financial institution and fund. 

2). Monitors the maturity dates of the long-term investments. 

3). Reviews with the Controller/City Treasurer whether the cash is needed for operations or 
should be reinvested. 

4). Reviews the investment decision by the Controller/City Treasurer. 

5). Reconciles the investment schedule with the bank statement. 

6). Shall be a Certified Public Accountant. 

7). The Financial Services Division shall submit annually a Cash Management report that 
summarizes recent market conditions and investment strategies employed since the 
last investment report. The investment report shall set out the current portfolio in terms 
of maturity, rates of return and other features and summarize all investment 
transactions that have occurred during the reporting period and compare the investment 
results with the budgetary expectations. 

C. City Administrator: 

1). Reviews periodically with the Director of Finance and Business Operations the City’s 
investment schedule. 

2). Approves individual investment decisions made by the Director of Finance and 
Business Operations or the Controller/City Treasurer if one of those positions is absent. 

D. Controller/City Treasurer: 

1). In accordance with Section 12B and 12C, the responsibility for conducting investment 
transactions resides with the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls. Only 
the Controller/City Treasurer may invest public funds in accordance with the following: 

2). Invests idle funds in a safe manner that maximizes yield. 

3). Contacts at least three (3) financial institutions in the county for each investment to 
obtain the best interest rate available. 

4). Arranges for the wire transfer of funds to the institution with the most lucrative interest 
rate. 

5). Holds the investments in safekeeping and monthly prepares a list of investments which 
is reconciled with the list prepared by the Director of Finance and Business Operations. 

6). The Cedar Falls City Council authorizes by resolution the eligible financial institutions, 
and the maximum amount allowed to be invested in each.  

38

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 9 

7). In addition, State Code Chapter 12C states:  

a. The City Treasurer or other financial officer may deposit public funds in depositories 
located in the county in which the city is located or in an adjoining county. If there is 
not a depository located either place, then any other depository located in this state 
shall be selected as a depository by the City Council. 

b. A minimum interest rate to be earned on funds placed in time deposits shall be 
established monthly by a committee composed of the superintendent of banking, 
the auditor of the state, and the state treasurer. 

c. The same committee has developed a list of financial institutions that are eligible to 
accept state public funds. 

d. Deposits of public funds made in excess of the amount insured by federal deposit 
insurance or federal savings and loan insurance must be protected by insurance, 
surety bond or collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal one 
hundred ten percent (110%) of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds 
when depositing public funds in a savings and loan or credit union. When depositing 
in a bank, the market value of the required collateral shall be at least ten percent 
(10%) of the average amount of the excess of total public funds over total federally 
insured public funds on deposit in the bank during the preceding year. 

E. The Controller/City Treasurer and Director of Finance and Business Operations shall 
disclose promptly to the City Administrator, and the City Administrator shall report to the 
Administration Committee, any loans made with any of the institutions with which the City 
does business if the amount exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00). This shall not 
prohibit such activity but only requires disclosure and insures there is no conflict of interest. 
This shall not apply to home mortgages, auto loans and other secured loans from a 
financial institution when made under normal lending procedures, terms, and requirements. 

F. All contracts or agreements with outside persons investing public funds, advising on the 
investment of public funds, directing the deposit or investment of public funds or acting in a 
fiduciary capacity for the City of Cedar Falls shall require the outside person to notify in 
writing the City within thirty days of receipt of all communication from the Auditor of the 
outside person or any regulatory authority of the existence of a material weakness in 
internal control structure of the outside person or regulatory orders or sanctions regarding 
the type of services being provided to the City by the outside person. 

G. The records of investment transactions made by or on behalf of the City are public records 
and are the property of the City whether in the custody of the City or in the custody of a 
fiduciary or other third party. 

H. The Controller/City Treasurer shall receive and review the audited financial statement and 
related report on internal control structure of all outside persons performing any of the 
following for this public body. 

1). Investing public funds. 

2). Advising on the investment of public funds. 
39

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 9 

3). Directing the deposit or investment of public funds. 

4). Acting in a fiduciary capacity for this public body. 

I. A Bank, Savings and Loan Association or Credit Union providing only depository services 
shall not be required to provide an audited financial statement and related report on internal 
control structure. 

3. Objectives. The primary objectives, in order of priority, of all investment activities involving the 
financial assets of the City shall be the following: 

A. Safety and preservation of principal in the overall portfolio. 

B.  Maintaining the necessary liquidity to match expected liabilities. 

C.  Obtaining a reasonable return. 

4. Prudence.  

A. The Controller/City Treasurer, Director of Finance and Business Operations, and City 
Administrator when investing or depositing public funds, shall exercise the care, skill, 
prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a person acting in a 
like capacity and familiar with such matters would use to attain the Section B investment 
objectives. 

B. This standard requires that when making investments decisions, the Controller/City 
Treasurer, Director of Finance and Business Operations, and City Administrator shall 
consider the role that the investment or deposit plays within the portfolio of assets of the 
City and the investment objectives stated in Section B. 

5. Instruments Eligible for Investment:  

A. Assets of the City may be invested in the following: 

1). Interest bearing savings accounts, interest bearing money market accounts, and 
interest bearing checking accounts at any bank, savings and loan association or credit 
union in the State of Iowa. Each financial institution shall be properly declared as a 
depository by the governing body of the City. Deposits in any financial institution shall 
not exceed the amounts approved by the governing body of the City.  

2). Obligations of the United States government, its agencies and instrumentalities. 

3). Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at federally insured depository 
institutions approved pursuant to Chapter 12C. 

4). Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT). 

5). Prime bankers' acceptances that mature within two hundred seventy (270) days and 
that are eligible for purchase by a federal reserve bank, provided that at the time of 
purchase no more than ten percent (10%) of the investment portfolio shall be in 
investments authorized by this paragraph and that at the time of purchase no more than 

40

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 9 

five percent (5%) of the investment portfolio shall be invested in the securities of a 
single issuer. 

6). Commercial paper or other short-term corporate debt that matures within two hundred 
seventy (270) days and that is rated within the two (2) highest classifications, as 
established by at least one (1) of the standard rating services approved by the 
superintendent of banking by rule adopted pursuant to Chapter 17A, provided that at 
the time of purchase no more than five percent (5%) of all amounts invested in 
commercial paper and other short-term corporate debt shall be invested in paper and 
debt rated in the second highest classification, and provided further that at the time of 
purchase no more than ten percent (10%) of the investment portfolio shall be in 
investments authorized by this paragraph and that at the time of purchase no more than 
five percent (5%) of the investment portfolio shall be invested in the securities of a 
single issuer. 

7). Repurchase agreements whose underlying collateral consists of the investments set out 
in paragraph (2) if the political subdivision takes delivery of the collateral either directly 
or through an authorized custodian. Repurchase agreements do not include re-verse 
repurchase agreements. 

8). An open-ended management investment company registered with the Federal 
Securities and Exchange Commission under the federal Investment Company Act of 
1940, 15 U.S.C. 80(a), and operated in accordance with 17 C.F.R. 270.2a.7. whose 
portfolio investment are limited to those investment individually authorized in Section E 
of this policy. 

9). Notwithstanding Iowa Code Sections 12C.2, 12C.4, 12C.6, 12C.6A, and any other 
provision of law relating to the deposits of public funds, if public funds are deposited in a 
depository, as defined in Iowa Code Section 12C.1, any uninsured portion of the public 
funds invested through the depository may be invested in certificates of deposit 
arranged by the depository that are issued by one or more federally insured banks or 
savings associations regardless of location for the account of the public funds depositor 
if all of the following requirements are satisfied: 

a. The full amount of the principal and any accrued interest of each certificate of 
deposit issued shall be covered by federal deposit insurance. 

b. The depository either directly or through an agent or sub-custodian shall act as 
custodian of the certificates of deposit.  

c. The day the certificates of deposit are issued, the depository shall have received 
deposits in an amount eligible for federal deposit insurance from, and issued 
certificates of deposit to, customers of other financial institutions wherever located 
that are equal to or greater than the amount of public funds invested under the 
subsection by the public funds depositor through the depository.  

B. All instruments eligible for investment are further qualified by all other provision of this 
Investment Policy.  

41

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 9 

6. Prohibited Investments and Investment Practices. Assets of the City shall not be invested 
in the following: 

A. Reverse repurchase agreements. 

B.  Futures and options contracts. 

C. Assets of the City shall not be invested pursuant to the following investment practices: 

1). Trading of securities for speculation or the realization of short-term trading gains. 

2). Pursuant to a contract providing for the compensation of an agent or fiduciary based 
upon the performance of the invested assets. 

3). If a fiduciary or other third party with custody of public investment transaction records of 
the City fails to produce requested records when requested by this public body within a 
reasonable time, the City shall make no new investment with or through the fiduciary or 
third party and shall not renew maturing investments with or through the fiduciary or 
third party.  

7. Investment Maturity Limitations. 

A. Operating Funds must be identified and distinguished from all other funds available for 
investment. Operating funds are defined as those funds which are reasonably expected to 
be expended during a current budget year or within fifteen (15) months of receipt. 

B. All investments authorized in Section E are further subject to the following investment 
maturity limitations: 

1). Operating funds and operating funds in excess up to 33% of operating funds may be 
invested in instruments authorized in Section E of this investment policy that mature 
within three hundred ninety-seven (397) days. 

2). Operating funds in excess of thirty-three (33%) percent of operating funds may invest 
the amount in excess of thirty-three (33%) percent in certificates of deposit at federally 
insured depository institutions approved pursuant to chapter 12C, which mature within 
sixty-three (63) months or less. 

3). Unreserved fund balances that are not operating funds may be invested for terms of 
longer than three hundred and ninety-seven (397) days. However, all investments of the 
City shall have maturities that are consistent with the needs and uses of the City. 

8. Diversification. 

A. Investments of the City are subject to the following diversification requirements and are 
allowed only after receiving Administrative Committee approval: 

1). Prime bankers' acceptances: 

a. At the time of purchase, no more than ten percent (10%) of the investment portfolio 
of the City of Cedar Falls shall be invested in prime bankers' acceptances, and 

42

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 9 

b. At the time of purchase, no more than five percent (5) of the investment portfolio of 
the City of Cedar Falls shall be invested in the securities of a single issuer.  

2). Commercial paper or other short-term corporate debt: 

a. At the time of purchase, no more than ten percent (10%) of the investment portfolio 
of the City of Cedar Falls shall be in commercial paper or other short-term corporate 
debt. 

b. At the time of purchase, no more than five percent (5%) of the investment portfolio 
of the City of Cedar Falls shall be invested in the securities of a single issuer, and 

c. At the time of purchase, no more than five percent (5%) of all amounts invested in 
commercial paper and other short-term corporate debt shall be invested in paper 
and debt rated in the second highest classification. 

B. When possible, the Controller/City Treasurer, Director of Finance and Business Operations, 
and City Administrator will attempt to diversity the portfolio. Assets shall be diversified to 
eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a 
specific issuer, or a specific class of securities. In establishing specific diversification 
strategies, the following general policies and constraints shall apply: 

1). Portfolio maturities shall be staggered in a way that avoids undue concentration of 
assets in a specific maturity sector. Maturities shall be selected which provide stability 
of income and reasonable liquidity. 

2). Liquidity practices to ensure that the next disbursement date and payroll date are 
covered through maturing investments, marketable U.S. Treasury bills or cash on hand 
shall be used at all times. 

9. Safekeeping and Custody.  

A. All invested assets of the City of Cedar Falls involving the use of a public funds custodial 
agreement, shall comply with all rules adopted pursuant to Section 12B.10C. All custodial 
agreements shall be in writing and shall contain a provision that all custodial services be 
provided in accordance with the laws of the state of Iowa. 

10. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest.  

A. The Controller/City Treasurer, Director of Finance and Business Operations, and City 
Administrator shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper 
execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial 
investment decisions. 

B. Employees and investment personnel shall disclose to the Controller/City Treasurer any 
material financial interest they may have in any financial institutions the City does business 
with or is authorized to do business with. 

C. Investment personnel shall also disclose any personal investments that may affect the 
market or value of the City's investments. Personal investments shall be subordinated to 

43

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 9 

those of the City of Cedar Falls. 

11. Procedures and Reporting. 

A. Sound financial control procedures and cash flow information services are established to 
monitor all cash related activities. Procedures and reporting steps are as follows: 

1). An annual operating budget and capital improvements program are prepared by the 
Department of Finance and Business Operations.  

a. The annual operating budget is approved by the Cedar Falls City Council by 
resolution and submitted to the Iowa Department of Management.  

b. The Five Year Capital Improvements Program is reviewed by the Cedar Falls 
Planning and Zoning Commission and then is presented to the City Council to be 
approved by resolution annually. 

2). Cash balance reports are prepared daily for use in the Department of Finance and 
Business Operations. Revenue and expenditure guidelines showing monthly revenues, 
expenditures and budget-to-actual information are prepared and distributed to 
departmental directors, City Administrator, the Mayor, and council members normally by 
the 15th of the following month. 

3). Investment transactions are recorded as they occur and investment status and earnings 
reports are prepared monthly. 

4). Reconciling actual investments and cash balances with the cash accounting records is 
performed once a month. The bank provides a statement of cash and investment 
activity and account balances which are reconciled to the City's cash and investment 
activity and ending cash balances. The reconciliation is completed by the 25th of the 
following month. 

5). The City combines all funds, except those required by federal or state laws to remain 
separate, into one bank account. The purpose is to: 

a. Reduce the cost of managing the funds. 

b. Create a larger common pool of cash for investment purposes. 

c. Lengthen maturities to achieve higher interest yields. 

d. Apportion earned interest to funds with cash balances. 

B. The largest revenue source in the City's General Fund is property tax. Because property 
taxes are collected twice a year in October/November and April/May, spending restrictions 
have been placed on the departments. A schedule is adopted every April for the next fiscal 
year that times expenditures in excess of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) for the months 
of October/November and April/May. To insure that the City is not forced into early 
withdrawals of long-term investments, all departments and boards are required to adhere to 
this schedule unless special approval is secured from the Department of Finance and 

44

Item 7.



CFD 1008.19:  Admin Policy – Cash Management and Investments    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 9 

Business Operations and City Administrator. 

C. After the City Council approves the annual operating budget, capital improvements 
program, and appropriations resolution, the Department of Finance and Business 
Operations prepares the annual cash management plan which includes the investments for 
the next fiscal year and the timing of expenditures. 

D. The Cash Management Report includes projected cash balances for all major funds 
individually and combined. Investments will be made with maturity dates that coincide with 
cash needs outlined in the plan. The City staff will invest for longer terms and earn higher 
interest yields based on this preplanned cash flow. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 6/8/92, 8/23/93, 1/12/98, 11/9/09, 12/1/15, 12/31/19 

45

Item 7.



CFD 1009.15:  Admin Policy –  Placement of Banners      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1009: Admin Policy – Placement of Banners 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to establish the guidelines concerning the installation and removal 
of banners upon existing utility poles by City staff and with the use of City equipment. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Responsibilities. 

A. The Public Works Department will install and remove a maximum of thirty-six (36) banners 
per design.  These banners will need to utilize the existing 71 brackets located upon the 
existing utility poles.  The banners must be located at a vertical height of no less than 
twelve (12) feet above the base of the utility pole.  The placement of banners on the 
Parkade (Main Street from Highway 57 to 6th Street) does require the use of a step ladder.  
The remaining locations will have the banners placed with the aid of the Traffic Operation 
Section’s  aerial bucket truck.  The following is a listing of banner bracket locations. 

B. Number of Brackets 
Main Street (6th to 14th)...................................................................48 
First Street (State to Roosevelt)........................................................23 

2. Installation. 

A. A written request for approval, directed to the Director of Public Works, 2200 Technology 
Parkway, must include the requested dates of installation and removal.  The request will 
then be acted up by the Director.   

B. A determination will be made as to the "not for profit" status of the requesting party.  If 
concluded the request is not for monetary benefit, the $9.50 per banner charge will be 
waived.  All others will be charged for the installation and removal of said banners at the 
rate of $9.50 for each banner.   

C. This rate will include the installation and removal of the banner.  This rate is predicated 
upon the current wage scale of the employees and operating costs of current equipment.   

D. This rate is subject to change due to increases in equipment and manpower costs.  The 
billing will be sent to the person requesting this service. 

E. Banner dimensions shall be 24" X 52".  All banners must conform to the existing bracket 
locations.   

F. Banners to be installed by the City must be delivered to 2200 Technology Parkway at least 
two (2) weeks prior to the date of requested installation.   

G. Removed banners must be picked up within one (1) week after being notified to do so.  
Storage of the banners will not be provided by the Public Works Department, Traffic 
Operations Section nor will the Department be responsible for the installation or removal of 
any type of electrical or non-electrical holiday decoration.  

46

Item 7.



CFD 1009.15:  Admin Policy –  Placement of Banners      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

H.  It shall be the responsibility of the requesting party to contact the Traffic Operations 
Supervisor at 273-8635 to schedule the delivery and pickup of the banners.  

I.  Installation and removal of banners will be integrated with the necessary daily work 
schedule and manpower available at those times requested for the installation of the 
banners. 

3. Liability. The City of Cedar Falls will not be liable for any damage to the banners incurred in 
the installation, removal, or storage of the banners provided. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 2/3/95, 12/1/15 

47

Item 7.



CFD 1010.19: Admin Policy – Attorney Compensation and Assignments  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 5 

CFD 1010: Admin Policy – Attorney Compensation and Assignments 
Approved December 31, 2019 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

This policy is intended to describe legal staff work assignments and establish criteria for charges 
for legal services outside of the scope of work assignehd to the City's in-house legal counsel.  

PROCEDURES: 

1. Selection. Selection of outside legal counsel shall be as provided in the selection of 
Professional Consultants in the City’s Accounting & Procedures and Purchasing Manual. 
However, written contracts or engagement letters are not necessary to assign legal work to 
outside legal counsel who appear on the approved list below. 

2. Rates. 

A. Rates shall be considered for adjustment annually, at the beginning of each fiscal year. 

B. Rates shall be based on public sector experience, tenure and satisfactory performance with 
the City. 

C.  When hourly rate work is performed, the responsible employee should seek Director of 
Finance and Business Operations authorization once it becomes apparent that the scope of 
work has expanded in complexity or duration beyond what was originally understood or 
anticipated. 

3. Billing. 

A. Outside legal counsel shall submit invoices on a monthly basis to the City. Such invoices 
shall include the amount of time spent by authorized counsel on each matter, computed to 
a maximum of quarter hour increments, plus out-of-pocket expenses incurred. 

B. Outside legal counsel paid on an hourly basis shall include in their bills the hourly rate of 
authorized counsel, or shall submit the bills in such a way as the hourly rate can be easily 
determined. Outside counsel paid on a monthly or retainer basis shall include in their 
invoices the amount of time spent by authorized counsel on each matter, computed to a 
maximum of quarter hour increments. 

C. Invoices shall be due no sooner than 30 days from billing, and no finance charges or 
interest shall be charged. 

4. Expenses. 

A. The hourly rate charged by outside legal counsel does not include out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred by outside counsel such as for service and filing fees, expert witness fees, 
recording and abstract fees, and medical record fees. Such expenses may be billed 
separately by outside counsel.  

B. Outside legal counsel’s hourly rate shall include all overhead items, travel (unless non-local 
48

Item 7.



CFD 1010.19: Admin Policy – Attorney Compensation and Assignments  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 5 

and agreed upon in advance), copying charges, computer assisted legal research, etc. 

C. Whenever possible, the City’s legal staff shall utilize existing City support staff, equipment 
and facilities to reduce legal support charges (City vehicles, copying, telephones, computer 
technology and clerical assistance). 

5. Training, education and professional memberships. 

A. For outside counsel retained on a retainer basis or monthly basis (currently only Mike 
Galloway of the Ahlers & Cooney law firm and Samuel Anderson and Luke Jenson of the 
Swisher & Cohrt law firm), the City, with the approval of the Director of Finance and 
Business Operations, may assist with continuing education and reasonable costs when the 
coursework relates to issues of City benefit, and participate in the payment of professional 
memberships relevant to City activities. 

6. Approved List of Outside Counsel and Assignments (retainer or monthly fee basis) 

A. Swisher & Cohrt (Samuel Anderson and Luke Jenson or other attorneys as approved). 

1). Assignments: 

a. Traffic code violations. 

b. Liquor law enforcement (civil and criminal). 

c. Tobacco code enforcement (civil and criminal). 

d. Parking ordinance enforcement. 

e. General criminal offenses (Chapter 16). 

f. Represent the Human Rights Commission and provide investigative services 
relating to claims. (Includes all prosecution and legal advice except when cases are 
against the City; then the Commission will be provided contracted legal counsel 
assigned by the Director of Finance & Business Operations.) (hourly basis). 

g. Magistrate Court where the City is a party defendant (hourly basis).  

h. Code enforcement violations. 

i. Animal control code violations. 

j. Zoning, signs, land use and housing enforcement. 

k. Building, electrical and plumbing code enforcement. 

l. Health and sanitation code violations. 

m. Fire Code. 

n. Nuisances. 
49

Item 7.



CFD 1010.19: Admin Policy – Attorney Compensation and Assignments  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 5 

o. Streets and sidewalk violation. 

p. Junk vehicles and noise violations. 

q. Mobile merchant violations. 

2). Compensation -- $3,600.00 per month. 

B. Ahlers & Cooney (Mike Galloway, Ann Smizek, Aaron Hilligas or other attorneys as 
approved). 

1). Assignments: 

a. Collective Bargaining (negotiation, contract interpretation, and mediation 
preparation). 

b. Employee grievances, disciplines, terminations, garnishments, and other personnel 
related issues. 

c. Represent City management in all Civil Service Commission actions. 

d. Court actions, when assigned, in which the City is a party (as assigned, hourly 
basis) 

e. Contested case proceedings before a federal or state administrative agency, fact 
finding or arbitration. 

f. Assist City and in-house counsel in insurance claim adjustment (Health, Life and 
LTD). 

g. Represent City before the Iowa Civil Rights Commission when the City is a named 
party. 

2). Compensation -- $3,900.00 per month. 

7. Approved List of Outside Counsel and Assignments (Hourly Basis). 

A. Swisher and Cohrt (Samuel Anderson, Steven Weidner or other attorneys as approved) 

1). Assignments: 

a. Real Estate. 

b. Probate, Wills, Trusts & Estates. 

c. Liability Defense. 

d. General Litigation in which the City is a party. 

2). Compensation -- $190.00 per hour; $75.00 per hour for paralegals 

B. Redfern, Mason, Larsen & Moore (Steven Moore, Bruce Gettman, Mark Fransdahl or other 
50

Item 7.



CFD 1010.19: Admin Policy – Attorney Compensation and Assignments  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 5 

attorneys as approved)  

1). Assignments 

a. Real Estate. 

b. Probate, Wills, Trusts & Estates. 

c. Specialized Municipal law. 

d. Liability Defense. 

e. Workers Compensation and Chapter 411 Defense. 

f. General Litigation in which the City is a party. 

2). Compensation--$150.00 per hour for Workers Compensation and Chapter 411 defense; 
$190.00 per hour for all other work; $200.00 per hour for Steven Moore; $75.00 per 
hour for paralegals. 

C. Ahlers & Cooney (See letter attached for approved attorneys and hourly rates; or other 
attorneys as approved) 

1). Assignments: 

a. General Obligation Bonds and Revenue Bonds. 

b. TIF. 

c. Developmental Agreements. 

d. Eminent Domain. 

e. Specialized Municipal Law. 

2). Compensation (see letter attached). 

D. Simmons, Perrine, Moyer, Bergman (Thomas Wolle) 

1). Assignments: 

a. Workers Compensation and Chapter 411 Defense. 

2). Compensation -- $175.00 per hour; $95.00 per hour for paralegals. 

E. Clark, Butler, Walsh & Hamann (Christopher Wendland) 

1). Assignments: 

a. Represent City Boards and Commissions in the event of conflict of interest on the 
part of in-house counsel. 

51

Item 7.



CFD 1010.19: Admin Policy – Attorney Compensation and Assignments  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 5 

b. Other municipal law matters in the event of conflict of interest on the part of in-
house counsel. 

2). Compensation -- $190.00 per hour; $75.00/hour for paralegals. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/28/95, 1/20/99, 6/1/00, 10/6/01, 8/12/03, 7/01/05, 8/18/10, 7/23/13, 
2/26/14, 12/1/15, 01/01/16, 7/1/19, 12/31/19 

 

52

Item 7.



CFD 1011.20:  Admin Policy – Private Use of Public Facilities   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1011: Admin Policy – Private Use of Public Facilities 
Approved September 20, 2021 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

This policy is intended to provide department directors with guidance on how and when they may 
allow use of the meeting facilities and equipment under their control. 

POLICY:   

From time to time citizens request the use of City facilities and/or City equipment to hold meetings. 
This policy establishes a system to allow the use of City meeting facilities. There may be separate 
policies and procedures regulating the use of individual City meeting facilities, including the 
imposition of fees. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Scheduling. When scheduling the use of City meeting facilities and/or City equipment, 
consider the following guidelines: 

A. Priority is given to City business, such as: 

1). City Council. 

2). City Departments. 

3). City Boards and Commissions. 

B. All scheduling conflicts must be resolved in favor of City business over private use. 

C. Generally, only not-for-profit groups will be allowed use of meeting facilities or equipment. 
Exceptions may be granted for other types of groups.  

D. Requests must be submitted to the department director, or designee, responsible for the 
meeting facility or equipment and should be handled on a first-come, first-served basis. 

E. Each group must be informed of room capacity. 

F. Groups are to be told that alcohol cannot be served or consumed on City property except 
for specifically designated facilities such the Hearst Center and the Community Center. 

G. When meetings are concluded, rooms must be straightened and returned to order. Groups 
must pay for any damages or cleaning. 

H.  Persons or groups using meeting facilities outside normal business hours (8:00 a.m. – 5:00 
p.m. Monday through Friday) will need to arrange for opening and closing the meeting 
facility as well as arrange for City staff to monitor such use, if required by the meeting 
facility. 

I. A Facilities Permit Application (copy attached) must be completed whether there will be 
53

Item 7.



CFD 1011.20:  Admin Policy – Private Use of Public Facilities   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

charges for usage or not. Each group must agree in writing to indemnify and hold the City 
and its employees and agents harmless according to the terms set forth on the application. 
Individual meeting facilities may have different application processes. 

J. When charges are assessed, checks should be made payable to the “City of Cedar Falls” 
and deposited with the Financial Services Division. 

K. City meeting facilities and the grounds for those facilities may not be used for political 
campaign purposes. However, the following activities may be held: 

1). Candidate debates or forums that are open to the public may be held in such facilities 
or grounds so long as at least two candidates seeking the same office are invited to 
attend the debate or forum.  

2). Precinct caucuses and caucus education or training may be held in City meeting 
facilities where other public meetings are allowed. Caucus education or training may not 
include fundraising or other campaign work and may not include advocacy for or 
against a ballot issue. 

3). City park shelters are allowed for political campaign purposes from August 10th through 
December 2nd from Noon until 8:00 p.m. every day.  

2. Revocation of Permissions. The City reserves the right to revoke permission to use meeting 
facilities and equipment at any time in the event of storm, flood, public health emergency, or 
other exigent circumstance. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/1/96, 12/1/15, 7/28/20, 9/20/21 

54

Item 7.



CFD 1012.15:  Admin Policy – Governmental /Educational Access Programming      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1012: Admin Policy – Governmental/Educational Access 
Programming 

Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

This policy is intended to provide department directors with guidance on how and when they may 
allow use of the meeting facilities and equipment under their control. 

POLICY:   

Government Access in Cedar Falls is programming produced by the City of Cedar Falls Cable 
Television Section for cablecast on channel 15. Government Access programming is intended for 
City of Cedar Falls management staff as a means to educate and inform citizens regarding City 
projects, programs and administrative and legislative policy. In addition, outside agencies funded 
or supported by the City of Cedar Falls shall be included as Government Access. Educational 
Access in Cedar Falls is programming produced by the City of Cedar Falls Cable Television 
Section in cooperation with area educational institutions. Channel 15 has been designated a 
Governmental/Educational Access channel for Cedar Falls. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Government Access. 

A. Video equipment use: The production studio and all of the associated video equipment, 
including the remote production truck, is solely for government and educational access 
use. 

B. Copying media: The Cable Television Section will make copies of a program for City use 
or for others directly involved with the production of the program, except for programs 
containing copyrighted content. A dubbing fee will be charged for anyone requesting a 
copy of media for non-City use or a person not directly involved with the production of 
the program, where the media is construed to be a matter of public record and the 
recording is still available. The dubbing fee is to cover the cost to the City in staff time. 
Cable Television Section employees may make a copy of their original work project 
without charge. The copies will be made on the employee's own time and on their own 
media. Any further editing of the employee's media using City equipment is prohibited. 

C. Channel 15 bulletin board: The bulletin board on channel 15 is for use by City 
departments and divisions to communicate information about City operations to the 
citizens of Cedar Falls. Educational institutions may also use the bulletin board for 
general announcements about activities taking place at their educational facilities. 

D. Employee conduct: All provisions of the Cedar Falls Employee Manual apply to Cable 
Television Section operations with the following additions: 

E. Safety: 

1). Use of hard hats: Employees and volunteers should wear a hard hat when there is any 
55

Item 7.



CFD 1012.15:  Admin Policy – Governmental /Educational Access Programming      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

risk of being struck in the head by falling objects, debris, or overhead obstacles. 

2). Use of safety vests: Employees and volunteers should wear a safety vest when 
shooting video on any construction site or around a public roadway. 

3). Use of Safety Cones: Safety cones should be set around any vehicle stopped in a 
public roadway and parked outside of a designated parking area. Use safety cones to 
mark any object set in a public roadway. Use safety cones to mark any cable that must 
be laid across a pedestrian walkway, both outside and inside buildings. 

4). Crossing a Pedestrian Walkway: Secure all cables crossing a pedestrian walkway by 
taping them down with gaffers tape. Whenever possible, place a mat/rug over the 
cables. Place safety cones on either side of the walkway to draw attention to the cables. 

5). Use of Studio Stepladder: The studio stepladder should only be used by City staff. 
Follow all manufacturer’s directions and warning labels. 

6). Studio lighting: Care should be taken when moving studio lights around the lighting grid 
that no persons are standing directly under the light fixture being moved. The fixtures 
may be hot. Use gloves to handle fixtures that have been on for even a short period of 
time or wait for the fixtures to sufficiently cool down. Reattach all safety cables to 
fixtures immediately after hanging them in a new position on the lighting grid. Double-
check to see if the mounting bolt has been tightly secured to the lighting grid after 
moving a fixture to a new position on the lighting grid. 

2. Educational Access. 

A. Supervision: Along with Cable Television Section staff, groups of students using the 
studio shall be supervised by at least one representative from the educational institution 
and that person will be in charge of discipline.  

B. Contractual agreement: The educational institution, non-profit, or other agency 
producing a program using Cable Television Section facilities and staff shall complete 
and sign an agreement concerning assignment of liability. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 11/2/99, 12/1/15 

56

Item 7.



CFD 1013.15:  Admin Policy – Compensation for Cable TV Services      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 1 

CFD 1013: Admin Policy – Compensation for Cable TV Services 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to clarify the manner in which individuals who provide services to the 
Cable TV Section may, in certain circumstances, be compensated for the work they perform. 

POLICY: 

At times it is necessary to collaborate with individuals outside of the Cable TV Section to produce 
Government and Educational Access programming. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines. 

A. City employees:  

1). City employees who are working with the Cable TV Section in their capacity as a city 
employee will be not be compensated beyond their regular rate of pay, except for 
special projects as approved by their Supervisor and Division Manager.   

2). Participation in Cable TV Section programming, or otherwise performing services for 
the Cable TV Section, shall be subject to the approval of the employee’s Supervisor, 
Division Manager and Department Director. 

B. Individuals affiliated with an outside organization or public entity:  

1). Individuals participating with Cable TV Section programming produced in cooperation 
with an outside organization or public entity are considered employees or volunteers for 
the outside organization or public entity and shall not receive compensation from the 
City. 

C. Individuals who are not City employees and who are not affiliated with an outside 
organization or public entity:  

1). Occasionally, it may be necessary for the City to compensate an individual for 
participation in Cable TV Section programming when the individual is not an employee 
of the City and is not affiliated with an outside organization or public entity.   

2). When appropriate, the amount of compensation will be negotiated and memorialized in 
a contractual agreement between the individual and the Cable TV Supervisor.    

3). Compensation will only be provided to certain individuals in order to facilitate 
programming that is initiated by the City and that is consistent with the programming 
goals established by the Cable TV Supervisor. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 11/1/03, 11/1/12, 12/1/15 

 
57

Item 7.



CFD 1017.06:  Admin Policy – Confidential Emergency Preparedness Information  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 1 

CFD 1017: Admin Policy – Confidential Emergency 
Preparedness Information 

Approved July 1, 2006 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to make confidential certain City of Cedar Falls records in accordance 
with Code of Iowa Section 22.7(52)(2006). 

POLICY:   

For the protection of the City employees, visitors to City facilities, persons in City care, custody, or 
control, and for the protection of City property, the Cedar Falls City Council hereby adopts this 
Security Information Policy. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines. 

A. The Cedar Falls City Council has determined that certain confidential information developed 
and maintained by the City concerning security procedures and emergency preparedness, 
if disclosed, would reasonably be expected to jeopardize such employees, visitors, 
persons, or property. 

B. The following information shall be kept confidential unless otherwise ordered by a court, by 
a lawful custodian of the records, or by another person duly authorized to release such 
information: 

1). Information directly related to vulnerability assessments; 

2). Information contained in records relating to security measures such as security and 
response plans, security codes and combinations, passwords, restricted area passes, 
keys, and security or response procedures; 

3). Emergency response protocols; 

4). Architectural, engineering or construction diagrams; 

5). Information contained in records that if disclosed would significantly increase the 
vulnerability of critical physical systems or infrastructures of the city to attack. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 7/1/06 

58

Item 7.



CFD 1018.22:  Admin Policy – Leave Donation Program    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1018: Admin Policy – Leave Donation Program 
Approved February 16, 2022 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

This is a voluntary program provided for an employee to donate unused/earned benefit time to the 
Leave Donation Program for other employees to use for continued income due to absences related 
to a catastrophic illness, injury, death or natural disaster. In an effort to implement the Leave 
Donation Program, the following procedures are established. 

POLICY:   

The City of Cedar Falls recognizes that an employee and/or the employee’s immediate family 
member may suffer from a catastrophic illness, injury, death or natural disaster resulting in 
circumstances where they lack sufficient sick leave, vacation, floating holidays, casual days, 
bereavement leave and compensatory time to be able to cope with these circumstances. In these 
circumstances, other employees may desire an opportunity to donate earned/unused benefit time 
to assist affected employees.  

PROCEDURES: 

1. Donation of Leave. 

A. Employees will be permitted to donate time to the City of Cedar Falls Leave Donation 
Program.  

B. Donations shall not be subject to any minimum or maximum increments. Donations cannot 
be made to a specific individual.  

C. The hours donated shall come from the employee’s unused/earned vacation hours, 
compensatory time hours, casual days or floating holiday hours.  

D. Employees may not donate hours from their sick leave balance.  

E. All donations must be made on the authorized form available from Financial Services.  

F. All hours donated are irrevocably credited to the Leave Bank Fund and are therefore non-
refundable. 

2. Processing. Hours donated will be converted to a cash amount based upon the donating 
employee’s hourly rate at the time of the donation multiplied by the number of hours donated. 
The monetary donation will then be distributed to affected employees as needed and converted 
to benefit time hours for the affected employee. All contributions shall remain confidential. 

3. Qualification for Use. 

A. An employee may qualify for donated hours if the employee and/or the employee’s 
immediate family member is suffering from a catastrophic illness, injury or a natural disaster 
of such a magnitude that it is life altering to the employee. Employees may also qualify for 
donated hours if the employee is in need of bereavement leave beyond what is otherwise 

59

Item 7.



CFD 1018.22:  Admin Policy – Leave Donation Program    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

allowed by personnel policy or union contract.  

B. Employees may request additional leave from the Leave Bank by completing the authorized 
form available from Financial Services. Additional documentation, including medical 
documentation, may be required.  

C. Employees requesting leave are responsible for obtaining the information and consent of 
third parties for the release of that information when applicable. 

4. Review.  

A. The Risk Management Committee shall review all Requests for Use of Leave from the 
Leave Bank and make the final determination for eligibility based upon a number of factors, 
including, but not limited to: 

1). The amount of leave, if any, the affected employee currently has available to them, and 
the history of the employee’s usage of leave. 

2). The anniversary date of the affected employee. 

3). The nature of the event and its effect upon the employee. 

B. The Risk Management Committee shall ensure that benefit time from the Leave Bank is 
allocated on an equitable basis as determined by the needs and circumstances of 
individual employees. Generally, the maximum amount awarded is limited to 2 weeks 
multiplied by the employee’s normal hours worked per week. Exceptions to this maximum 
may be determined to be appropriate by the Risk Management Committee.  

C. The Risk Management Committee, upon request of the affected employee, may reconsider 
denials of applications for leave from the Leave Bank. The employee shall file a request for 
reconsideration within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving notice of the Committee’s 
decision to deny the application for additional leave. The Risk Management Committee 
shall consider the request for reconsideration at its next regularly scheduled meeting at 
which time the affected employee may personally address the Committee. 

D.  Compensation received by employees from the Leave Donation Program is considered 
taxable income. 

E. The City of Cedar Falls may provide for an automatic deposit into the Leave Bank Program 
of any unused vacation time that an employee would lose as a result of their inability to 
carry over the vacation time after their anniversary date. See Personnel Policy #506(5) and 
(6). 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 09/01/08, 08/29/12, 12/1/15, 2/16/22 

 

60

Item 7.



CFD 1019.15: Admin Policy – Litigation Hold    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1019: Admin Policy – Litigation Hold 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to prepare and strengthen the City's position through documentation 
when litigation is commenced or when there is a reason to anticipate litigation. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Anticipate Litigation.  

A. The duty to preserve information, including electronic information, attaches when litigation 
is reasonably anticipated. Accordingly, city employees must not wait until a lawsuit is filed 
to notify their department or division manager of potential litigation and to begin 
preservation efforts. 

B. As soon as litigation is reasonably anticipated, the department and division manager must 
advise the Director of Finance and Business Operations and City Attorney in writing of the 
nature of the potential litigation and begin locating and preserving relevant information, 
including electronic information. 

2. Determine the Relevant Scope.  

A. The department or division manager’s notice of potential litigation to the Director of Finance 
and Business Operations and City Attorney must describe the time period, subject matter, 
and the location(s) of potentially relevant information. 

B. The Department of Finance and Business Operations will determine the relevant scope of 
the preservation by becoming familiar with the factual dispute as well as the department or 
division’s electronic information systems and platforms. By defining the scope early, the 
City Attorney can target the search to preserve relevant information without adding 
unnecessary costs to or sanctions against the city. 

3. Issue a “Litigation Hold” Memo.  

A. As soon as possible after litigation is reasonably anticipated and the City Attorney is notified 
by the department or division manager of potential litigation, the City Attorney will notify the 
information technology staff and all employees who may have relevant documents or 
information. 

B. The litigation hold memo will generally identify the legal dispute that may result in litigation. 
The litigation hold will also specifically describe the information that must be preserved as 
well as how the information should be maintained and stored. All recipients of the litigation 
hold should be required to acknowledge their understanding and receipt of the litigation 
hold memo. 

4. Contact and Deposition.  

A. The City Attorney and information technology staff will meet with the key players in the 
61

Item 7.



CFD 1019.15: Admin Policy – Litigation Hold    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

litigation to determine what information they may have. This meeting will assist in 
determining the relevant scope of the preservation as well as the key terms, topics, and 
issues. It also provides an opportunity to directly instruct the key players concerning their 
preservation responsibilities under the litigation hold memo. 

B. Key players should provide information about their personal document retention and 
destruction policies with a specific emphasis on how they manage their email, and whether 
these key players maintain or store information on their local workstations or on removable 
disks. The City Attorney will take possession of and segregate whatever electronic 
information or “active files” the employee may have. 

5. Search All Sources of Relevant Information. The City Attorney, the department and division 
manager, and information technology staff will prepare a plan to search for relevant 
information. 

6. Segregate and Preserve Relevant Electronic Evidence. When relevant or potentially 
relevant information has been located, The City Attorney and information technology staff will 
take reasonable efforts to segregate and preserve this information. 

7. Monitor Preservation Procedures. The affirmative duties to preserve are continuing. 
Accordingly, the City Attorney and information technology staff will continually monitor the 
preservation efforts to ensure that proper procedures are being followed. 

8. Periodically Re-issue notification. The initial notification will be re-issued to the key players 
in the litigation to remind relevant employees of their obligation to segregate and preserve 
relevant information. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 5/2/09, 12/1/15 

62

Item 7.



CFD 1021.15: Admin Policy – Public Records CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 4 

CFD 1021: Admin Policy – Public Records 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines to follow with regard to Iowa Code Chapter 22 
and the City Council’s adopted Records Retention Schedule.  

POLICY:   

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to facilitate broad access to public records. The City is 
committed to the policies set forth in Iowa Code Chapter 22. City staff shall cooperate with 
members of the public in implementing the provisions of that Chapter. Departments will maintain 
dependable, complete, and accessible records management systems whereby unnecessary 
duplication is eliminated. Each Department will comply with the City Council's adopted Records 
Retention Schedule.  

DEFINITION: 

• Records Custodian: For purposes of this policy, "Custodian" means the person lawfully 
delegated by the City to act for the City in implementing Iowa Code Chapter 22. For the 
City of Cedar Falls, the City Clerk is the Custodian of the records 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Departmental Records. Each Department shall have a person responsible for maintaining an 
inventory of the records and be familiar with the locations of the records that are the 
responsibility of that department as dictated by the adopted Records Retention Schedule. 

2. Requests for Access.  

A. A request for access to a record should be directed to the City Clerk. (The only exception to 
this policy is the routine records requests that are directed to the Police Records division.) 
The City Clerk will respond to the request within ten (10) working days of the date of the 
request, if possible. 

B. If the request is for a record routinely accessed for public view, access to the record shall 
be provided promptly by the City Clerk’s office unless the size or nature of the request 
makes prompt access infeasible. Access shall be provided within ten (10) working days 
from the date the request is received by the City Clerk unless delayed as authorized by 
Iowa Code Section 22.8(4) or 22.10(4). The City Clerk will promptly give notice, if possible, 
to the requester of the reason for any delay in access to a public record and an estimate of 
the length of that delay. Notice will be given in writing if the requester has provided a 
sufficient street or e-mail address. 

3. Confidential Records.  

A. "Confidential record" means a record that is not available as a matter of right for 
examination and/or copying by members of the public under applicable provisions of law.  

63

Item 7.



CFD 1021.15: Admin Policy – Public Records CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 4 

B. The City Clerk may treat a record as a confidential record and withhold it from examination 
only to the extent that such actions are authorized by Iowa Code Chapter 22.7, another 
applicable provision of law, or by Court Order. 

C. The following records under the jurisdiction of the department may be withheld from public 
inspection: 

1). Sealed bids received prior to the time set for public opening of bids. 

2). Procurement proposals prior to completion of the evaluation process and the issuance 
of a notice of intent to award a contract by the appropriate procurement authority. 

3). Tax records made available to the department. 

4). Records which are exempt from disclosure under Iowa Code Section 22.7. 

5). Minutes of closed meetings of a government body. 

6). Identifying details in final orders, decisions, and opinions to the extent required to 
prevent a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy or trade secrets under Iowa 
Code Chapter 17A. 

7). Those portions of department staff manuals, instructions, or other statements issued 
which set forth criteria or guidelines to be used by department staff in auditing, in 
making inspections, in settling commercial disputes or negotiating commercial 
arrangements, or in the selection or handling of cases, such as operational tactics or 
allowable tolerances of criteria for the defense, prosecution, or settlement of cases 
when disclosure of these statements would: 

a. Enable law violators to avoid detection. 

b. Facilitate disregard of requirements imposed by law. 

c. Give a clear improper advantage to persons who are in an adverse position to the 
department. 

8). Records that constitute attorney work product, attorney-client communications, or that 
are otherwise privileged. 

9). Reports to government agencies which, if released, would give advantage to 
competitors and serve no public purpose. 

10).Vehicle accident reports submitted to the department by drivers and peace officers. 
Access shall be granted to those persons authorized by Iowa Code Section 321.271.  

11).Peace officers’ investigative reports, and specific portions of electronic mail and 
telephone billing records of law enforcement agencies, to the extent and under the 
terms provided for in Iowa Code Section 22.7(5).  

12).Confidential assignments of state vehicles by the State Vehicle Dispatcher. These 
records include letters/memos detailing driver assignments and plate numbers for 

64

Item 7.



CFD 1021.15: Admin Policy – Public Records CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 4 

selected vehicles pursuant to Iowa Code Section 8A.362(7), and Iowa Code Section 
321.19(1). 

13).Computer resource security including but not limited to names, identifiers, and 
passwords of users of computer resources. This information must be kept confidential 
to maintain security for access to confidential records pursuant to Iowa Code Section 
22.7. 

14).Personal information in confidential personnel records. 

15).Data processing software (as defined in Iowa Code Section 22.3A) that is developed by 
a government body (City) or developed by a nongovernmental body and used by the 
City pursuant to a contractual relationship with the nongovernmental body. 

16).Log-on identification passwords, Internet protocol addresses, private keys, or other 
records containing information that might lead to the disclosure of private keys used in a 
digital signature or other similar technologies as provided in Iowa Code Chapter 554D. 

17).Records, which if disclosed, might jeopardize the security of an electronic transaction 
pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 554D. 

4. Consent to Disclosure by the Subject of a Confidential Record.  

A. To the extent permitted by any applicable provision of law, a person who is the subject of a 
confidential record under the jurisdiction of the department may consent to have a copy of 
the portion of that record concerning the subject disclosed to a third party.  

B. The consent must be in writing and must identify the particular record that may be 
disclosed, the particular person or class of persons to whom the record may be disclosed, 
and, where applicable, the time period during which the record may be disclosed. Such 
consent does not require the disclosure of the record by the City Clerk.  

C. The subject, and where applicable, the person to whom the record is to be disclosed, must 
provide proof of identity. 

5. Denial of Access Requests.  

A. The City Clerk and/or City Attorney may deny access to a record only as permitted by Iowa 
Code Chapter 22, if it is a confidential record as defined by Iowa Code or other applicable 
law or departmental policy, or that its disclosure is prohibited by a Court Order.  

B. If a request for access to records is denied, the City Clerk will promptly provide written 
notification, if possible, of the denial to the requester and the reasons therefor. 

6. Request Granted. When the City Clerk grants a request for access to records, the City Clerk 
will include any lawful restrictions imposed on the requester's examination and/or copies of the 
record. 

7. Security of Records. No person may, without permission from the Custodian, search or 
remove any record from the City's files. Examination of City records shall be supervised by the 

65

Item 7.



CFD 1021.15: Admin Policy – Public Records CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 4 

Custodian or his or her designee. Any photocopying of City records shall be done by the 
Custodian or his or her designee on City-owned or leased photocopy equipment. 

8. Fees. 

A. The charge for copies of records may vary depending on the type of record requested.  

B. The fee charged will be in accordance with the City’s annual fee resolution.   

C. When the mailing of copies is requested, the actual cost of such mailing may be charged to 
the requester.  

D. Costs for the services of staff for researching and retrieving records will be based on their 
hourly rate of pay and the amount of time that it takes or is estimated to take to locate and 
copy the requested records. 

E. If it is necessary to determine whether documents are confidential, a fee may be assessed 
based on the hourly rate of pay for the reviewing attorney.  

F. Fulfillment of a request for a copy of a public record shall be contingent upon receipt of 
payment of all expenses to be incurred in fulfilling the request and such estimated 
expenses shall be communicated to the requester upon receipt of the request.  

G. All fees will be paid in full before any records are released to the requesting party. 

9. Electronic Data.  

A. The City is not required under Iowa Code Chapter 22 to provide the public with access to 
City software, but must allow access to records that are created as a result of the function 
of that software.  

B. Electronic data shall be made available in a format in which is readily accessible to the City 
if that format is useable with commonly available data processing or database management 
software. 

C. Electronic data MAY be provided in a specific format requested by a person that is different 
from that in which it is readily accessible to the City and the City may charge the 
reasonable costs of any required processing, programming, or other work required to 
produce the public record in the specific format.  

10. Availability of Records. In the event that the request for records is not sufficiently definite to 
determine whether documents included in the request are confidential, the City Attorney or his 
or her designee will review the request. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 2/24/14, 12/1/15 

 

66

Item 7.



CFD 1022.15: Admin Policy – Employee Assignment of City Vehicle     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1022: Admin Policy – Employee Assignment of City Vehicle 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to address employee positions designated to a City assigned 
vehicle, and the dates those positions are allowed to operate the vehicle for daily travel. This 
policy shall be used in conjunction with Personnel Policy 401: Automobile, Vehicle, and 
Equipment Usage and Driving Policy.  

POLICY:   

In addition to using a city provided vehicle during their assigned work hours, as part of an 
employee’s job assignment they may be allowed to use a city provided vehicle to travel to and 
from their residence to their assigned work place on a daily basis. This vehicle is being provided 
to allow for more efficient response to events that may occur outside the regular work hours.  

All Internal Revenue Service regulations related to taxation of fringe benefits will apply to those 
employees under this assignment. Employees assigned a City vehicle shall use the vehicle only 
in the performance of his/her official duties. Personal purposes will be allowed on a limited, 
incidental basis. Transportation of family members or others for unofficial business is prohibited. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines.  

A. The following positions will be allowed to utilize an assigned city provided vehicle as 
described below on a daily basis to travel to and from their residence to their assigned 
work place during the entire year: 

1). Police Chief and/or Assistant Chief if applicable – An appropriate vehicle as 
determined by the Department of Municipal Operations and Programs with no 
identifiable markings. 

2). Fire Chief and/or Assistant Chief if applicable– An appropriate vehicle as determined 
by the Department of Municipal Operations and Programs with identifiable Public 
Safety markings. 

3). Non-shift Fire personnel expected to respond to calls 24 hours/day- An appropriate 
vehicle as determined by the Department of Municipal Operations and Programs with 
identifiable Public Safety markings. 

4). Police Officer assigned to the Investigative Lab – A crime scene vehicle that allows 
the officer to process crime scenes, traffic accidents, and other scenes. 

B. The following positions will be allowed to utilize an assigned city provided vehicle as 
described below on a daily basis to travel to and from their residence to their assigned 
work place during the months of November - March: 

1). Public Works & Parks Supervisors that rotate being on call – An appropriate vehicle 
67

Item 7.



CFD 1022.15: Admin Policy – Employee Assignment of City Vehicle     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

as determined by the Department of Municipal Operations & Programs with 
identifiable City markings.  

C. The following positions will be allowed to utilize an assigned city provided vehicle as 
described below on a daily basis to travel to and from their residence to their assigned 
work place during the months of May – September: 

1). Recreation & Programs Manager – An appropriate vehicle as determined by the 
Department of Municipal Operations & Programs with identifiable City markings. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 1/1/2015, 3/1/2015, 12/1/15 

68

Item 7.



CFD 1023.15: Admin Policy – Use of the City Logo    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 1 

CFD 1023: Admin Policy – Use of the City Logo 
Approved December 1, 2015 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the use of the City Logo.  

POLICY:   

The City of Cedar Falls has adopted an official City Logo. This logo gives a consistent visual image 
that makes it easy for citizens and various audiences to recognize the City of Cedar Falls and to 
clearly identify the association with the City of Cedar Falls. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines. 

A. The logo is recommended for all visual representations of the City of Cedar Falls, including 
but limited to, signs, video productions, vehicles, equipment, business cards, printed 
publications, and official web sites/social media accounts of the City of Cedar Falls. 

B. The logo should be reproduced in the official colors unless used in black and white printed 
materials. 

C. The logo should not be modified or altered in any way. 

D. The logo should be used on all outgoing correspondence from employees of the City of 
Cedar Falls through email or written stationery. 

E.  The logo is prohibited to be used on personal correspondence to avoid appearance of an 
official communication by the City of Cedar Falls. 

F.  Specific divisions/departments of the City of Cedar Falls may use in addition to the City 
Logo another logo that represents their particular area. These additional logos must be 
approved by the department director. These logos must be used in conjunction with the 
official City Logo as described in the guidelines listed above. The official City Logo should 
be more dominant than the specific division/department logo on all correspondence and 
representations of the City of Cedar Falls.  

G. The logo does not represent the official seal of the City of Cedar Falls as used by the City 
Clerk on formal documents of the City of Cedar Falls.  

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 12/1/15 

69

Item 7.



CFD 1024.19:  Admin Policy – Social Media Access and Use      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 5 

CFD 1024: Admin Policy – Social Media Access and Use 
Approved December 31, 2019 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for establishment, access, use of external 
social media sites for City purposes, and content guidelines for both city personnel and citizens.  
Examples of legitimate use of social media sites include: 

• Education and promotion of City activities and policies. 
• Public outreach to communicate and deliver messages directly to our citizens. 
• Provide leadership and public service announcements. 
• Support employee recruiting activities. 

POLICY:   

The City of Cedar Falls uses social media tools to provide ways to build community, while officially 
and rapidly communicating directly with stakeholders, partners, the general public and the media 
as a part of its overall online communications. These tools are simply another way to deliver public 
information, customer service and E-government to our residents. To address the fast-changing 
landscape of the Internet and the way residents communicate and obtain information online, city 
departments may use social media formats to reach a broader audience.  The City encourages the 
use of social media to further the goals of the City and the missions of its departments, where 
appropriate. However, the City has an overriding interest and expectation in protecting the integrity 
of the information posted its behalf on social media sites.    

PROCEDURES: 

1. Establishment, Access and Brand Management. 

A. All official City of Cedar Falls presences on social media sites or services are considered an 
extension of the City’s information networks and are governed by other related policies 
such as Technology Resources Acceptable Use Policy 806.  These policies strictly prohibit 
the use of City technology resources for personal use. 

B. The establishment of City social media accounts is subject to approval by the 
Communications Specialists or his/her designee.  Upon approval, City social media sites 
shall bear the name and/or official logo of the city somewhere on the site.  Users setting up 
official City social media accounts must use the official city logo.  If divisions/departments 
utilize an additional logo specific to their area, they must use the city logo in conjunction 
with this alternate logo. 

C. City social media sites shall clearly state that such sites are maintained by the City and that 
the sites comply with the City’s Social Media Policy (CFD 1024). 

D. Information Systems is responsible for the implementation and maintenance of access to 
social media sites. 

E. Access and/or use of public social media sites is granted only with the approval of 
Department Directors. 

70

Item 7.



CFD 1024.19:  Admin Policy – Social Media Access and Use      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 5 

F. All requests from Department Directors for social media presence must be submitted in the 
form of a business case to Information Systems Manager and the Communications 
Specialists.  The business case must include a strategy to keep content fresh and updated.  
Social media accounts that are not maintained and updated on a regular basis (at least 
once a week) are subject to removal. Please utilize Attachment 1, Social Media Request 
and Strategy.  

G. Content on City social media sites is subject to oversight by the City’s Communication 
Specialist. 

H. Utilizing advertising within the social media platform to boost engagement and awareness 
of particular City sites or programs will be allowed as long as the budget allows for such 
expenditures. Advertising campaigns should be reviewed by the Communication 
Specialists and Department Director before the advertisement is purchased. 

2. Responsibilities. 

A. Departments are strongly encouraged to follow the metrics of their social media sites to 
ensure viability and effectiveness.  Information Systems may request metrics reports. 

B. Departments using social media are responsible for complying with applicable federal, 
state, county and local ordinances, laws, regulations, and policies. This includes adherence 
to established laws and policies regarding copyright, records retention, First Amendment, 
privacy laws, accessibility guidelines and information security policies established by the 
City of Cedar Falls. 

C. City Social Media sites are subject to public records requests.  Any content maintained on a 
City social media site that is related to City business may be considered a public record 
and subject to public disclosure.   The department maintaining the site is responsible for 
responding completely and accurately to any public records request for social media.  

D. It is important to ensure the public’s trust of the City’s presence on social media sites 
because many imitation sites (both deliberate and not deliberate) exist. 

E. All City Facebook sites should go through the verification process and have the blue 
verification checkmark on the Facebook sites. The department coordinator will be the 
person responsible for establishing this verification. 

F. Naming conventions (URLs) or other online identities created for social media sites must be 
submitted to the Communications Specialist in advance before establishing an account to 
ensure the name is sufficient for an official Cedar Falls government entity and are 
consistent with other department names. 

G. Visual elements of social media sites should be designed, as much as possible, to reflect 
the City logo to ensure visual consistency and credibility.  If divisions/departments utilize an 
additional logo specific to their area, they must use the city logo in conjunction with this 
alternate logo.   

H. Official City social media accounts will be controlled by a secure username and password 
supplied by Information Systems, and dual authentication is strongly encouraged if 

71

Item 7.



CFD 1024.19:  Admin Policy – Social Media Access and Use      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 5 

available. 

I.  Use of personal social media accounts for city use is prohibited. 

J. Use of City social media accounts for personal use is prohibited. 

K. Use of personal social media accounts during work hours is prohibited.  Users setting up 
official City social media accounts will use a valid City email address. 

3. Content Guidelines. 

A. Departments are responsible for establishing, publishing, and updating their pages on 
social media sites. Although it will be the department’s responsibility to maintain the 
content, the Communication Specialist will monitor the content on each of the department’s 
pages to ensure: 

1). Consistent city-wide messaging.  

2). Adherence to the Social Media Access and Use (CFD 1024) and Technology 
Resources Acceptable Use (CFD 2406) policies. 

B. The communications specialist will direct departments to modify social media content based 
on best practices and industry norms. The communications department will advocate using 
social media to help departments reach their stated goals by assisting departments in 
developing appropriate uses for social media, assisting with the selection of appropriate 
social media outlets and helping departments define a strategy for using social media. 

C. Wherever possible, links should direct users back to the City’s official Web site for more 
information, forms, documents or online services necessary to conduct business with 
Cedar Falls. 

D. The content of City social media sites should only pertain to City-sponsored or City-
endorsed programs, services and events.   

E. Comments from the public are allowed on social media sites but those sections must be 
monitored daily during working hours to ensure the comments meet certain criteria. Some 
mediums such as Facebook allow instant commenting while others like YouTube allow for 
a moderated/approved process. City-created social media forums must adhere to the 
following requirements: 

1). Postings must be structured narrowly to focus comments on a particular interest of 
Cedar Falls rather than creating a public forum.  Departments are required to remove 
postings that do not meet this narrow focus of City interest. 

2). All sections of social media Web sites that allow comments must include either a link to 
or the complete text of the City’s Comment Code of Conduct policy, listed in Section 4 
in the Social Media Access and Use policy (CFD 1024).   

3). Departments may choose to reply to comments to engage with residents much similar 
to phone and E-mail inquiries, but business decorum must prevail and factual 

72

Item 7.



CFD 1024.19:  Admin Policy – Social Media Access and Use      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 5 

responses, not opinions, must be shared. Department staff monitoring and replying to 
comments are strongly encouraged to coordinate responses with other departments, if 
appropriate, so the best response can be provided.  Social media platforms are a series 
of conversations that constantly evolve.  City staff must provide constructive information 
that mirrors city information elsewhere and should not attempt to control other peoples’ 
opinions. 

4). Violation of standards set forth in this policy may result in the removal of departmental 
pages from social media sites. Information Systems retains the authority to remove 
pages. 

4. Comment Code of Conduct. In addition to whatever limitations a website may independently 
impose, the City reserves the right to hide (or delete) any content or comments containing any 
one or more of the following:  

A. Comments not related to the post being commented upon. 

B. Profane Language. 

C. Comments that promote, foster, or perpetuate discrimination on the basis of race, creed, 
color, age, religion, gender, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, sex, 
national origin, disability, gender identity or sexual orientation. 

D. Sexual content or links to sexual content. 

E. Solicitations or advertisements for commerce. 

F. Illegal conduct or encouragement of illegal activity. 

G. Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public or public 
systems. 

H. Content that is political in nature or promotes a particular candidate or political party 

I. Personal attacks, insults, threats, and hate speech. 

J.  Promotions of organizations or events not related to the content of the site. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 12/1/15, 08/31/19, 12/31/19 

  

73

Item 7.



CFD 1024.19:  Admin Policy – Social Media Access and Use      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 5 

Social Media Strategy Request 
Department: ________________________________________________________________ 

Contact: ___________________________ Phone:  _________________________________ 

Name of Platform to be used:  __________________________________________________ 

Please describe why you want to use this platform:  

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

What is the main goal that you want to obtain with this platform: 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Who will be the designated Department Representative?  (This person will be the primary user and 
individual who posts to the social media page.  This person is responsible for monitoring the site to 
comply with the Social Media Access and/or Use Policy (CFD 1024)  

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Who will be the back up to the Department Representative?  

___________________________________________________________________________ 

How often do you plan to post? _____________________________________________ 

By signing below, you agree to abide by the Social Media Access and/or Use Policy (CFD 1024) 
and the Technology Resources Acceptable use policy (Personnel policy 806.)    

 
Applicant: __________________________________ Date: _____________________________ 

Approved by Department Director: __________________________________ Date: _________ 

Approved by Communication Specialist: _____________________________ Date: __________ 

74

Item 7.



CFD 1025.21: Admin Policy – Security Cameras on City Property   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 3 

CFD 1025: Admin Policy – Security Cameras on City Property 
Approved August 1, 2021 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for all city employees other than public safety 
employees on placement and selection of cameras, the access and retrieval of recorded video 
footage, the monitoring in real-time, the retention & archival policy of the recorded video, and the 
management of the video security network system.  

POLICY: 

The City of Cedar Falls recognizes that the use of security camera equipment can greatly enhance 
public safety and protection of the City’s assets. However, the need to ensure security and safety 
must be balanced with an individual’s right to privacy. It is the City’s responsibility to utilize the 
security cameras in a way that enhances security, deters crime and aids law enforcement and city 
personnel while respecting the privacy expectations of our citizens. For the general public, the use 
of video cameras shall be used only in public spaces in which individuals do not have a reasonable 
expectation of privacy. 

This policy does not apply to law enforcement cameras used for covert operations and criminal 
surveillance mobile cameras used in public safety vehicles, or body-worn cameras worn by 
officers. The Cedar Falls Public Safety department maintains its own policies which shall control 
Public Safety use of cameras. This policy does not apply to the Cedar Falls public library cameras. 
The Cedar Falls Public Library Board of Trustees is the governing body for the library and controls 
the policy over camera use.  

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines. 

A. The cameras may be monitored in real-time for increasing public safety by identifying 
circumstances or individuals engaged in behavior likely to disrupt the public peace or lead 
to violations of the law.  

B. Cameras in the city’s buildings may also be equipped with audio functionality. 

2. Department Responsibilities. 

A. Any department requesting the security cameras must work with the Information Systems 
Division to discuss the selection, procurement, and installation of cameras and other 
network infrastructure. The Information Systems Division will designate the standard 
security camera system or service to be used.  

B. The Information Systems Division will maintain a current inventory of all security camera 
systems placed at city facilities and within city limits. 

C. The Information Systems Division will ensure that the network systems are secure and shall 
limit access to monitoring and recordings using the guidelines and procedures detailed in 
this policy. 

75

Item 7.



CFD 1025.21: Admin Policy – Security Cameras on City Property   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 3 

D. The Information Systems Division will coordinate train-the-trainer training to departments on 
the use of the security system. 

E. Department Directors are responsible for determining department personnel who may 
monitor the cameras in real time and shall also be responsible for restricting access when 
violations are discovered.  

F. Individual departments shall not independently purchase and/or install security camera 
systems. 

3. Camera Placement and Selection.  

A. Cameras will not be placed in areas where there is a reasonable expectation of privacy or 
in areas prohibited by the Code of Iowa. 

B. Cameras will only be placed with the function of either enhancing public safety or protecting 
City investments and assets. 

C. Each proposed camera position will be assessed, by both the Information Systems Division 
and the requesting department, on a case-by-case basis to determine the available network 
infrastructure, and best camera type. 

D. Placement of cameras in public spaces requires approval by the police chief or designee, 
and Director of Public Works. Placement on street light poles owned by Cedar Falls Utilities 
requires approval of Cedar Falls Utilities Electric Distribution Manager. 

E. Placement of cameras at City facilities or buildings requires approval by the department 
director, or division manager. 

F. Departments will work with Information Systems and its designated vendor to determine the 
optimal camera that will meet the application intentions and functionality with the highest 
value. 

4. Monitoring.  

A. Viewing will not be based on the subject’s personal characteristics, including age, color, 
disability, gender, national origin, race, religion, sexual orientation, or other protected 
characteristics. 

B. Public Safety personnel may monitor and review security camera live feeds and recordings 
for purposes of public safety. 

C. Explicit permission for a specific job or business related reason must be obtained from the 
Department Directors whose department is responsible for the facility where the camera is 
located before city personnel will be allowed to live monitor security cameras placed on city 
facilities. 

5. Retrieval of recorded video. 

A. All recording and monitoring of activities of individuals or groups by cameras will only be 
conducted in a manner consistent with the purpose for security. 

76

Item 7.



CFD 1025.21: Admin Policy – Security Cameras on City Property   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 3 

B. All responses to public requests for retrieval of recorded video footage from public cameras 
must be approved by the Public Safety Director or designee in consultation with the City 
Clerk. 

C. Internal requests for retrieval of recorded video footage from cameras installed for the 
protection of city assets on city property must be made by the Department Director or the 
City Administrator. 

D. Footage may be utilized in support of disciplinary proceedings against employees. 

E. Requests for release of recorded material set forth in subpoenas or other legal documents 
compelling disclosure should be submitted to the City Attorney and the Public Safety 
Director.  

F. Notwithstanding the above, retrieval and archival of recorded material as part of a criminal 
investigation by public safety personnel does NOT require Director or City Administrator 
approval. 

6. Retention & Archival Policy. 

A. Video footage will be stored on servers in the City’s data center with access given to 
authorized personnel only. 

B. Video footage will be retained for up to thirty days or until storage is filled to capacity, 
whichever occurs first.  

C. All recorded video archived by public safety personnel for purpose of an investigation can 
be kept indefinitely. 

D. All recorded video archived for the loss of assets can be kept indefinitely.  

7.  Management of the Video Security Network System. 

A. The information Systems Division will manage network connectivity issues and coordinate 
problem remediation, maintenance, repair and replacement of devices. 

B. All upgrades and maintenance issues with the cameras or the security network will be 
coordinated with the Information Systems Division.  

C. All data about the network infrastructure (camera server, locations, etc.) itself is strategically 
important; release of this information could compromise the security of the City’s WAN and 
is considered to be confidential information. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 8/1/21  

77

Item 7.



CFD 1026.21: Admin Policy – Public Building Access    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1026: Admin Policy – Public Building Access 
Approved August 1, 2021 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

This policy provides guidelines for the establishment of security measures in city owned public 
buildings.  

POLICY:   

Members of the public have access to all public facilities of the City. However, in accommodating 
that public access, the City needs to ensure that physical assets and confidential information are 
protected and that cyber security measures are in place. The public facilities of the City include 
City Hall, Public Works Complex, Water Treatment Facility, 1500 Bluff Street Complex, Public 
Safety Building, Hearst Center for the Arts, Recreation Center, Visitors & Tourism Center, and 
Community Center.  

PROCEDURES: 

1. General guidelines. 

A. Lobby areas are open to the public during hours that the building is open. 

B. Areas that are for staff and authorized personnel only shall be clearly designated on the 
outside entry door to that area.  

C. Private offices are not open to the public unless the person assigned to that office has 
requested a meeting in such office and the member of the public seeking access has been 
invited to the meeting. A staff member should accompany the member of the public to the 
office where the meeting is to be held.  

D. Conference rooms are not open to the public unless a meeting by a city staff member has 
been requested and the member of the public seeking access has been invited to the 
meeting.  

E. Computer network areas are not accessible to the public for any reason.  

F. The public may set up an appointment to tour city facilities with the staff representative of 
that facility. Those appointments must be set up in advance. If the tour is not set up in 
advance, the public will only be restricted to the lobby area. The person designated as the 
staff representative for each facility is as follows: 

1). City Hall – City Clerk 

2). Public Works Complex – Operations & Maintenance Manager 

3). Water Treatment Facility – Water Reclamation Manager 

4). 1500 Bluff Street Complex – Operations & Maintenance Manager 

5). Public Safety Building – Shift Captain 
78

Item 7.



CFD 1026.21: Admin Policy – Public Building Access    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

6). Hearst Center for the Arts – Cultural Programs Supervisor 

7). Recreation Center – Recreation & Community Programs Manager 

8). Visitors & Tourism Center – Tourism & Cultural Manager 

9). Community Center – Library Director 

G. During public meetings, access is allowed in the established areas where the public 
meeting is being held.  

H. During tours of city facilities, no access will be granted to secure network locations, private 
offices, areas deemed unsafe by the staff representative, critical infrastructure areas, 
mechanical room areas, and areas where confidential information is stored. Computer 
equipment in open work areas will be guarded from the view of public to ensure security of 
passwords and confidential information. Confidential information contained in non-
electronic format also may be guarded from public view.  

I. Pictures and videos are not permitted to be taken during the tour unless permission is 
granted by the staff representative. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 8/1/21 

 

79

Item 7.



80

Item 8.



81

Item 8.



82

Item 8.



83

Item 8.



84

Item 8.



85

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  December 11, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

b) Rancho Chico, 618 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

c) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

 

86

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET | CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 12, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Admin Policy – Standard Municipal Index Management (CFD 1007) 

 REF: City Code of Ordinances, Section 2-218 (5)(c) – Administrator Powers & Duties 

1. City Staff and I have worked closely during the past three years to develop a 

comprehensive indexed library of city policies.  Because no standard municipal index 

could be found, then-City Clerk Jacque Danielsen and collaborated to create a flexible and 

expandable system for Cedar Falls.  

2. The short policy, CFD 1007, is attached for your review and approval. The index is already 

being used for document management on the city server and in in the physical library in 

the Executive Conference Room.   

3. The City Administrator and City Clerk have both reviewed the guidance in CFD 1007 and 

have expressed no concerns about it. Most of the city’s major policy manuals (Finance, 

Personnel, Admin, Fire, Police, and Emergency Operations Plan) have already been 

renumbered and reformatted as part of the indexing process. 

4. Thank you for your consideration of this indexing directive; as an administrative policy, it 

requires City Council approval due to the requirements of reference (a).   

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

  City Clerk 

 

### 

 

 

 

87

Item 11.



CFD 1007.XX:  Admin Policy – Standard Municipal Index Management CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1007: Admin Policy – Standard Municipal Index Management 
Approved MMM DD, YYYY by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

This policy describes the organization of the Cedar Falls Standard Municipal Index (SMI), the city’s 

library of approved policies, forms, manuals, studies, and other important references. 

POLICY:   

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that significant public policy documents shall be made readily 

available for public reference, and that these documents shall be referenced using the SMI.  

PROCEDURES: 

1. Responsibility. The City Clerk or designee shall be the custodian and maintainer of the SMI. 

2. Applicability. All studies, plans, policies, and reports should be incorporated into the SMI upon 

receipt and file or adoption by the City Council. Directives which do not require council approval 

may be managed through the SMI numbering system as well. Vital external publications which 

have been adopted by the city, such as Roberts Rules of Order, should also be included in the 

SMI for ready reference. 

3. Organization.  

A. The SMI consists of “thousand series” categories. Each category contains multiple 

subcategories to further organize documents by functional topic.   

B. The primary categories of the Standard Municipal Index shall be: 

1000 Administration 

2000 Personnel 

3000 Finance 

4000 Community Development 

5000 Public Safety 

6000 Engineering 

7000 Public Works 

8000 Parks and Recreation 

9000 Boards and Commissions 

10000 External Affairs 

(No 0000 - 0999 will exist, to avoid challenges with numeric indexing) 

 

88

Item 11.



CFD 1007.XX:  Admin Policy – Standard Municipal Index Management CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

4. Use of the CFD Prefix.  

A. When referencing city directives in the index, the number shall be prefixed with “CFD” (for 

Cedar Falls Directive) when appropriate to denote that the document has been indexed and 

contained within the Standard Municipal Index.  

B. No other prefixes shall be used as part of the Cedar Falls Standard Municipal Index. 

5. Numbering. The CFD number for each document shall be determined by the City Clerk, and 

shall be appended to the document upon approval, adoption, or receipt and file. 

6. Annual Version Control.  

A. Items which are intended for annual or multi-year update, such as the Three-Year Financial 

Plan, will include a two-digit year number appended to the document’s index number noting 

the year approved (not necessarily the Fiscal Year affected).  As an example, the FY23 

Three-Year Financial Plan approved in 2022 would be indexed as “CFD 3202.22”.   

B. Draft versions of documents shall be appended with .XX rather than the version year, to show 

that it is not yet approved.   The version year shall only be added to the document after formal 

approval. 

C. All previous years of publications shall be retained for reference in an appropriate archive 

folder on the server. 

7. Mid-Year Change Annotation. Multiple revisions of a document generated in a single year 

(such as for updates to council meeting procedures) shall be appended with successive lower-

case letters beginning with “b”.  As an example, the first revision to CFD 1107.22 in calendar 

year 2022 would be catalogued as CFD 1107.22b. 

8. Continually Updated Documents. Some documents updated continually. Rather than 

versioning by year, such documents should be appended with “.SE”, noting that it is a series. An 

example is: “CFD 9002.SE – Directory of Boards and Commissions”.  

9. System Improvement.  The Standard Municipal Index is a dynamic system warranting continual 

improvement and enhancement.  Change suggestions are welcome and should be made to the 

City Clerk. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: M/D/YY 

89

Item 11.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET | CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 
 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 13, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Council Approval of Admin Policy - Formatting of City Policies (CFD 1020) 

 REF: City Code of Ordinances, Section 2-218 (5)(c) – Administrator Powers & Duties 

1. City Staff and I have worked closely during the past three years to standardize the 

formatting for the city’s policies.  Taking cues and best practices from other cities, the 

conversion of policies to the new format is largely complete.    

2. The short policy, CFD 1020, is attached for your review and approval. The conversion of 

policies to the new format is largely complete, and so the purpose of the policy is to 

provide clear guidance to city staff for future policy formatting.  

3. The City Administrator and City Clerk have both reviewed the guidance in CFD 1020 and 

have no concerns about it.  Unlike most policies, 1020 uses “should” rather than “shall” 

throughout, so as not to create a perception of a legal requirement; it is simply a best 

practice and guide to follow. 

4. Thank you for your consideration of this formatting policy; while a minor administrative 

function, it requires City Council approval due to the requirements of reference (a).   

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

  City Clerk 

 

### 

 

 

 

90

Item 12.



CFD 1020.XX:  Admin Policy – Formatting of City Policies CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1020: Admin Policy – Formatting of City Policies  
Approved MMM DD, YYYY by the Cedar Falls City Council 

PURPOSE:  

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for the creation and maintenance of policy 

documents in the City of Cedar Falls.  

POLICY:   

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to publish publicly accessible policies in a standard format 

for ease of readability, reference, and search indexing. 

DEFINITION: 

 Policy: Any written directive or standard operating procedure or guideline which provides 

instructions for the conduct of municipal government. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Organization. Each policy should contain the following Parts, as needed, in uppercase bold: 

A. The Purpose is the reason the policy was created. This unnumbered paragraph should begin 

with, “The purpose of this policy is to…” 

B. The Policy actually sets what the city’s position is on the topic. This unnumbered paragraph 

should begin with “It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to…” 

C. Definition(s) allow unfamiliar terms to be clarified. This section should be a bulleted list which 

contains any of the definitions used in the policy, as a bulleted list. 

D. The Procedures are the instructions that are to be followed in order to carry out the policy.  It 

is a multi-level list described 2.B below.  

E. Adopted / Amended: This is the final item in the directive and contains the original date of 

adoption in Y/M/DD format (such as “2/12/20”) and any amending dates, separated by 

comma.  This line serves to show that no content follows the  

2. Formatting Considerations.   

A. Body Font. The standard body font should be 11pt Arial throughout for screen readability. 

Line spacing should be 1.15, with 12pt spacing after each paragraph and list item. 

B. Procedures in Outline Format. Multi-level lists should be in “1. A. 1) a. (a). i.” format. Policy 

writers should seek to avoid excessively ‘deep’ policy content when possible; instead, the 

document should be reorganized as necessary for easier readability and comprehension. 

C. Policy Header. Each policy page should contain at the top the name of the policy (along with 

the CFD number and year of approval) justified left and the words CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

91

Item 12.



CFD 1020.XX:  Admin Policy – Formatting of City Policies CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

IOWA | Page X of Y” justified right with a line underneath both. No text should appear in the 

document footer. 

D. Document Title. The name of the policy document should appear at the top of the first page 

in Arial 16pt Bold, with the standard index number (but no year).  The type of policy (Police 

SOG, Admin Policy, Personnel Policy, etc.) should also appear in the title directly after the 

index number to aid in referencing. 

3. Other General Considerations. 

A. Policy documents should be written with a minimum of jargon or technical language. 

B. Authors should refrain from using second-person phrasing (for example, “You shall be on 

time for work”) and instead should always write in third-person (for example, “All employees 

shall be on time for work”).  

C. Tables and graphics may be employed in policy documents as appropriate. 

D. Forms related to a policy should typically be included at the end of the policy for convenience 

and ready reference. 

4. Example. This policy document contains the above formatting requirements for reference. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: M/D/YY 

 

92

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: December 4, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Resolution Designating Authorized Signatories for  
  Financial Accounts and Vehicles  
 

Attached please find an updated resolution Designating the Authorized Signatories for 
Financial Accounts and Vehicles for the City of Cedar Falls. In accordance with Cedar 
Falls Code of Ordinance Section 2-256(8), checks drawn shall be countersigned by the 
Controller/City Treasurer, the Mayor and Director of Finance and Business Operations.  
Due to the election results we are removing Robert M. Green and adding Daniel 
Laudick as an authorized signer on the checking accounts, effective January 2, 2024.   
 
If you have any questions about this, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 

93

Item 13.



 RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES FOR FINANCIAL 
ACCOUNTS AND VEHICLES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Department of Finance and Business Operations has 

recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that the following 

individuals be designated as authorized signatories for financial accounts and vehicles 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa: 

Checking Accounts 
Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 
Investment Accounts/Vehicles 
Ronald S. Gaines, City Administrator  
Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve and adopt said recommendation, 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the above individuals are so designated as authorized signatories for financial 

accounts and vehicles of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and that this resolution shall take 

effect and be in force from and after January 2, 2024. 

 

ADOPTED this 18th day of December, 2023. 

                                                                                                                                             
________________________ 

                                                                            Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

94

Item 13.



 
 
 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PUBLIC SAFETY – FIRE RESCUE DIVISION 

4600 South Main Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Phone: 319-273-8622 

Fax: 319-268-5196 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Honorable Mayor Green and Cedar Falls City Council 

CC: Craig Berte, Public Safety Director     

From: Chief John Zolondek   

Date:12/12/23  

Re: Brycer-Compliance Engine    

 

The Compliance Engine is a simple, internet-based tool for code officials to track and drive code 

compliance, reduce false alarm activity, and provide a safer community. In addition to the web-

based technology, Brycer would perform follow up calls to help increase testing and maintenance 

activity in a given jurisdiction. The end result is a comprehensive and accurate aggregation of data 

around which buildings have what types of systems, when they were last tested, and if there are 

any open deficiencies that could jeopardize their successful deployment in the event of an 

incident. This system is used by many Fire departments and contactors are familiar with system.   

 

 

I respectfully request that Cedar Falls City Council approve this agreement with Brycer.  

95

Item 14.



96

Item 14.



97

Item 14.



98

Item 14.



99

Item 14.



100

Item 14.



101

Item 14.



102

Item 14.



103

Item 14.



104

Item 14.



Filing Fees for Fire Code and NFPA compliance status reports: 

     5-Year Sprinkler Systems:                                                  $22.00 per submittal 

     Automatic Fire Sprinkler System:                                       $22.00 per submittal 

     Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Cleaning:                             $22.00 per submittal 

     Commercial Kitchen Hood Suppression System:               $22.00 per submittal 

     Emergency Generator:                                                        $22.00 per submittal 

     Emergency Radio Responder Coverage System:               $22.00 per submittal 

     Fire Alarm System:                                                              $22.00 per submittal 

     Fire Doors/Escape:                                                              $22.00 per submittal 

     Fire Pump:                                                                           $22.00 per submittal 

     Gas Detection System:                                                        $22.00 per submittal 

     Paint/Spray Booth:                                                               $22.00 per submittal 

     Private Hydrant System:                                                      $22.00 per submittal 

     Special Suppression System:                                              $22.00 per submittal 

     Standpipe:                                                                            $22.00 per submittal 

 

Reports submitted after 30 days from the inspection date will incur a $7.00 late fee 

Reports submitted after 60 days from the inspection date will incur a $10.00 late fee 

Reports submitted after 90 days from the inspection date will incur a $17.00 late fee 

      

 

105

Item 15.



 
RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY2024 FEE 
SCHEDULE TO ESTABLISH FEES FOR THE FILING OF REPORTS WITH THE CITY’S 

THIRD-PARTY ADMINISTRATOR RELATIVE TO FIRE CODE COMPLIANCE  
 
 

WHEREAS, the City has adopted the International Fire Code, 2021 Edition, as 

amended, as well as certain National Fire Protection Association Standards (“NFPA”), and 

 

WHEREAS, ensuring compliance with such Fire Code and NFPA Standards is essential 

to the health and safety of Cedar Falls residents, workers and visitors, and 

 

WHEREAS, due to the significant administrative requirements of ensuring compliance, 

the City has engaged the services of Brycer, LLC, to assist the City with compliance 

administration, including acceptance of electronic compliance filings and collecting filing fees on 

behalf of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City to approve and adopt an amendment to the City’s FY2024 Fee Schedule to 

establish a fee for filing Fire Code and NFPA compliance reports with Brycer, LLC. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

that the City’s FY2024 Fee Schedule is hereby amended as provided in the attached.  

 

ADOPTED this 18th day of December, 2023. 

 

                                                                  
______________________________ 

                                                                       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                               
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 

106

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO:  Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM:  Jennifer Pickar 

 DATE:  December 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT:  Artist Agreement with Multiple Artists for Panthers on Parade  
     Mascot Embellishments 

  
Attached please find contracts to work with artists to assist with the embellishment of 
fiberglass TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade. All final designs have been reviewed 
and approved by UNI staff and City staff members.  
 
For each mascot, an artist will receive $500 upon pick up on or around February 1, 
2024, and $1,500 upon approved completion on or around April 15, 2024. Please note 
that some artists are completing more than one mascot. The cost of these services is 
covered by mascot sponsorships.   
 
Please see the agreements for the following artists: 

a. Alex Miller 

b. Amanda Stout  

c. Amber Wegner  

d. Amelia Gotera 

e. Bret Miller 

f. Caitlyn Bardle 

g. Casey Slack 

h. Chad McKinzie 

i. Jaylin Vander Wiel 

j. Lean Runyan 

k. Karin Desnoyers 
l. Mary Ingamells 

m. Rachel Heine 

n. Rachael “Rose” Smith 

o. Salina Gavin 

p. Sara Fitzgerald 

q. Stephanie Fever 

r. Susan Rolinger 

 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director

 

107

Item 16.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
AND 

ALEX MILLER 
FOR PANTHERS ON PARADE MASCOT EMBELLISHMENT 

 
 
This Agreement is by and between Alex Miller (“Artist”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Artist or the City below. 
 

 
Background Information 

 
City seeks to showcase the community’s pride and commitment to the University of Northern 
Iowa through a program called Panthers on Parade, comprised of artistic embellishments of 
UNI’s mascot, TC, and displaying them in multiple locations in the community.   

 
Terms of Agreement 

 
1. Artwork: Artist shall provide a completed mascot embellishment (“Artwork”) that is 

unique and original in its design, accurately following the approved design shown in 
Attachment A.  No changes to the design will be made during production.  No 
manipulation in the original pose of the mascot will occur.  City will spray a protective 
clear coating consisting of clear automotive lacquer after TC delivery. 

 
2. Display of Artwork: Artwork will be on display in a location within Cedar Falls from 

approximately May 1, 2024 – October 27, 2024 ("Display Period"). 
 

3. Delivery and Installation of the Artwork: Artist shall pick up a blank, prefabricated mascot 
from a to be announced location in Cedar Falls on February 1, 2024, upon notification 
by the City’s Project Manager.  Artist shall complete artistic embellishment as provided 
in Paragraph 1 and deliver to a to be announced designated location in Cedar Falls by 
April 15, 2024.  If the Artwork and/or fiberglass form is not in substantially the same 
condition as shown on Attachment A, then this Agreement may be immediately 
terminated by City upon written notice to Artist, with no penalty or additional payment by 
City to Artist. 

 
4. Project Confidentiality:  Artist shall maintain confidentiality of the Artwork design until 

public launch, as notified by the City, including but not limited to any photos or video of 
work in progress or completed work to anyone via email, internet, social media, in-
person or other means prior to the public launch. 
 

5. Ownership of Artwork: Upon delivery, the Artwork shall be owned by the City and the 
corresponding mascot sponsor (“sponsor”).  At the end of the Display Period, the 
Sponsor may sell or dispose of the Artwork at their sole discretion. 

 
6. Insurance & Liability: From the time the blank mascot is picked up by the Artist until the 

time it is delivered to the City, the Artist is responsible for the value of the 
mascot/Artwork and any damages.  Artist accepts all liability for the safe application of 
their artwork to the mascot and shall provide a safe, weather and vandal resistant 
mascot, including any appurtenances to the mascot.  Artist is legally liable for structural 
additions shown in the design (Attachment A) that affect the mascot’s structural integrity.  
At the City’s direction and prior to executing any structural addition, the Artist may need 
to consult with the fabricator and provide written documentation confirming such change 

108

Item 16.

Mobile User



will not impact the structural integrity.  Upon delivery of the Artwork, it will be inspected 
to assure there are no damages to the mascot or Artwork and the Artwork then 
becomes the property of City.  After delivery, the City may choose to repair minor 
damages to the Artwork if the inspection determines any occurred, at the City’s expense 
and in its sole discretion.  The City and Sponsor (if applicable) shall be responsible for 
minor maintenance or repairs during the Display Period. 
 

7. Hold Harmless: The Artist agrees to hold harmless the City (for purposes of this 
Paragraph 7 includes elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents working 
on behalf of the City) against all actions, claims, liabilities, assertions of liability, losses, 
costs, and expenses whatsoever, in law or in equity, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees and expenses, which in any manner directly or indirectly may arise or be 
alleged to have arisen, from the installation, deinstallation, or display of the Artwork or 
as a result of the duties and obligations on the part of the Artist as required by this 
Agreement. 

 
8. Payment: City shall pay the Artist: $500 at time of mascot pick up by the Artist and an 

additional $1,500 upon delivery of the Artwork in satisfactory condition.  In no event shall 
more than $2,000. 

 
9. Motion Pictures, Television Productions, and Photographs: The Artist grants City 

permission to allow the Artist's Artwork to be included in any motion picture television 
production, and/or photographs, and/or other images taken in the City, and/or any 
marketing materials with no compensation paid to the Artist other than as provided in 
Paragraph 8 above. In addition, the artist grants permission to the production company 
and/or photographer to exhibit or disseminate all or any part of said film or photographs 
through any medium throughout the world. 

 
10. Independent Artist:  Nothing herein shall be construed to create an employer-employee 

relationship between the parties, and Artist remains an independent Artist through the 
term of this Agreement and is totally responsible for the Artist's materials, labor, costs, 
transportation and insurance. 

 

11. Assignment: No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Artist 
without the prior written consent of the City.   

 
12. Successors and Assigns: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 

of Artist, and Artist's heirs, beneficiaries, successors, and assigns. 
 

13. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, along with Attachment A,constitutes the entire 
agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter, and there are no promises 
or understandings between the parties except as set forth herein. 

 
14. Notices:  Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization 

required to be provided shall be given or provided to: 
 
City’s Project Manager: Artist: 
Name: Jennifer Pickar Name: ________________________ 
Title: Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager  Title: ________________________ 
Address: 6510 Hudson Road Address: ______________________ 
              Cedar Falls, IA 50613 ______________________ 
Telephone: 319-268-4266  Telephone: _____________________ 
Email: jennifer.pickar@cedarfalls.com  Email:_________________________  

 
 

109

Item 16.

Mobile User



 
 
In Witness Whereof, the City and the Artist have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the last date listed below. 
 
ARTIST 
  
_____________________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________________________ 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
By: __________________________________ 
        Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________ 
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 
  

110

Item 16.

Mobile User



Attachment A 
Approved Design 

 
 
 
 
 

 

111

Item 16.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
AND 

AMANDA STOUT 

FOR PANTHERS ON PARADE MASCOT EMBELLISHMENT 

 
 
This Agreement is by and between Amanda Stout (“Artist”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Artist or the City below. 
 

 
Background Information 

 
City seeks to showcase the community’s pride and commitment to the University of Northern 
Iowa through a program called Panthers on Parade, comprised of artistic embellishments of 
UNI’s mascot, TC, and displaying them in multiple locations in the community.   

 
Terms of Agreement 

 
1. Artwork: Artist shall provide a completed mascot embellishment (“Artwork”) that is 

unique and original in its design, accurately following the approved design shown in 
Attachment A.  No changes to the design will be made during production.  No 
manipulation in the original pose of the mascot will occur.  City will spray a protective 
clear coating consisting of clear automotive lacquer after TC delivery. 

 
2. Display of Artwork: Artwork will be on display in a location within Cedar Falls from 

approximately May 1, 2024 – October 27, 2024 ("Display Period"). 
 

3. Delivery and Installation of the Artwork: Artist shall pick up a blank, prefabricated mascot 
from a to be announced location in Cedar Falls on February 1, 2024, upon notification 
by the City’s Project Manager.  Artist shall complete artistic embellishment as provided 
in Paragraph 1 and deliver to a to be announced designated location in Cedar Falls by 
April 15, 2024.  If the Artwork and/or fiberglass form is not in substantially the same 
condition as shown on Attachment A, then this Agreement may be immediately 
terminated by City upon written notice to Artist, with no penalty or additional payment by 
City to Artist. 

 
4. Project Confidentiality:  Artist shall maintain confidentiality of the Artwork design until 

public launch, as notified by the City, including but not limited to any photos or video of 
work in progress or completed work to anyone via email, internet, social media, in-
person or other means prior to the public launch. 
 

5. Ownership of Artwork: Upon delivery, the Artwork shall be owned by the City and the 
corresponding mascot sponsor (“sponsor”).  At the end of the Display Period, the 
Sponsor may sell or dispose of the Artwork at their sole discretion. 

 
6. Insurance & Liability: From the time the blank mascot is picked up by the Artist until the 

time it is delivered to the City, the Artist is responsible for the value of the 
mascot/Artwork and any damages.  Artist accepts all liability for the safe application of 
their artwork to the mascot and shall provide a safe, weather and vandal resistant 
mascot, including any appurtenances to the mascot.  Artist is legally liable for structural 
additions shown in the design (Attachment A) that affect the mascot’s structural integrity.  
At the City’s direction and prior to executing any structural addition, the Artist may need 
to consult with the fabricator and provide written documentation confirming such change 

112

Item 17.



will not impact the structural integrity.  Upon delivery of the Artwork, it will be inspected 
to assure there are no damages to the mascot or Artwork and the Artwork then 
becomes the property of City.  After delivery, the City may choose to repair minor 
damages to the Artwork if the inspection determines any occurred, at the City’s expense 
and in its sole discretion.  The City and Sponsor (if applicable) shall be responsible for 
minor maintenance or repairs during the Display Period. 
 

7. Hold Harmless: The Artist agrees to hold harmless the City (for purposes of this 
Paragraph 7 includes elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents working 
on behalf of the City) against all actions, claims, liabilities, assertions of liability, losses, 
costs, and expenses whatsoever, in law or in equity, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees and expenses, which in any manner directly or indirectly may arise or be 
alleged to have arisen, from the installation, deinstallation, or display of the Artwork or 
as a result of the duties and obligations on the part of the Artist as required by this 
Agreement. 

 
8. Payment: City shall pay the Artist: $500 at time of mascot pick up by the Artist and an 

additional $1,500 upon delivery of the Artwork in satisfactory condition.  In no event shall 
more than $2,000. 

 
9. Motion Pictures, Television Productions, and Photographs: The Artist grants City 

permission to allow the Artist's Artwork to be included in any motion picture television 
production, and/or photographs, and/or other images taken in the City, and/or any 
marketing materials with no compensation paid to the Artist other than as provided in 
Paragraph 8 above. In addition, the artist grants permission to the production company 
and/or photographer to exhibit or disseminate all or any part of said film or photographs 
through any medium throughout the world. 

 
10. Independent Artist:  Nothing herein shall be construed to create an employer-employee 

relationship between the parties, and Artist remains an independent Artist through the 
term of this Agreement and is totally responsible for the Artist's materials, labor, costs, 
transportation and insurance. 

 

11. Assignment: No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Artist 
without the prior written consent of the City.   

 
12. Successors and Assigns: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 

of Artist, and Artist's heirs, beneficiaries, successors, and assigns. 
 

13. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, along with Attachment A,constitutes the entire 
agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter, and there are no promises 
or understandings between the parties except as set forth herein. 

 
14. Notices:  Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization 

required to be provided shall be given or provided to: 
 
City’s Project Manager: Artist: 
Name: Jennifer Pickar Name: ________________________ 
Title: Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager  Title: ________________________ 
Address: 6510 Hudson Road Address: ______________________ 
              Cedar Falls, IA 50613 ______________________ 
Telephone: 319-268-4266  Telephone: _____________________ 
Email: jennifer.pickar@cedarfalls.com  Email:_________________________  

 
 

Amanda Stout 
Artist

220 Amhurst Street
Iowa City, IA 52245
319-461-8911

astoutdesigns@gmail.com

113

Item 17.



 
 
In Witness Whereof, the City and the Artist have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the last date listed below. 
 
ARTIST 
  
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name: ___________________________________ 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
By: __________________________________ 
        Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________ 
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 
  

Amanda Stout

114

Item 17.



Attachment A 
Approved Design 

 
 

 
 

115

Item 17.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
AND 

AMBER WEGNER 

FOR PANTHERS ON PARADE MASCOT EMBELLISHMENT 

 
 
This Agreement is by and between Amber Wegner (“Artist”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Artist or the City below. 
 
 

Background Information 
 
City seeks to showcase the community’s pride and commitment to the University of Northern 
Iowa through a program called Panthers on Parade, comprised of artistic embellishments of 
UNI’s mascot, TC, and displaying them in multiple locations in the community.   

 
Terms of Agreement 

 
1. Artwork: Artist shall provide a completed mascot embellishment (“Artwork”) that is 

unique and original in its design, accurately following the approved design shown in 
Attachment A.  No changes to the design will be made during production.  No 
manipulation in the original pose of the mascot will occur.  City will spray a protective 
clear coating consisting of clear automotive lacquer after TC delivery. 

 
2. Display of Artwork: Artwork will be on display in a location within Cedar Falls from 

approximately May 1, 2024 – October 27, 2024 ("Display Period"). 
 

3. Delivery and Installation of the Artwork: Artist shall pick up a blank, prefabricated mascot 
from a to be announced location in Cedar Falls on February 1, 2024, upon notification 
by the City’s Project Manager.  Artist shall complete artistic embellishment as provided 
in Paragraph 1 and deliver to a to be announced designated location in Cedar Falls by 
April 15, 2024.  If the Artwork and/or fiberglass form is not in substantially the same 
condition as shown on Attachment A, then this Agreement may be immediately 
terminated by City upon written notice to Artist, with no penalty or additional payment by 
City to Artist. 

 
4. Project Confidentiality:  Artist shall maintain confidentiality of the Artwork design until 

public launch, as notified by the City, including but not limited to any photos or video of 
work in progress or completed work to anyone via email, internet, social media, in-
person or other means prior to the public launch. 
 

5. Ownership of Artwork: Upon delivery, the Artwork shall be owned by the City and the 
corresponding mascot sponsor (“sponsor”).  At the end of the Display Period, the 
Sponsor may sell or dispose of the Artwork at their sole discretion. 

 
6. Insurance & Liability: From the time the blank mascot is picked up by the Artist until the 

time it is delivered to the City, the Artist is responsible for the value of the 
mascot/Artwork and any damages.  Artist accepts all liability for the safe application of 
their artwork to the mascot and shall provide a safe, weather and vandal resistant 
mascot, including any appurtenances to the mascot.  Artist is legally liable for structural 
additions shown in the design (Attachment A) that affect the mascot’s structural integrity.  
At the City’s direction and prior to executing any structural addition, the Artist may need 
to consult with the fabricator and provide written documentation confirming such change 
will not impact the structural integrity.  Upon delivery of the Artwork, it will be inspected 
to assure there are no damages to the mascot or Artwork and the Artwork then 

116

Item 18.



117

Item 18.



118

Item 18.



119

Item 18.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
AND 

AMELIA GOTERA 
FOR PANTHERS ON PARADE MASCOT EMBELLISHMENT 

 
 
This Agreement is by and between Amelia Gotera (“Artist”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Artist or the City below. 
 
 

Background Information 
 
City seeks to showcase the community’s pride and commitment to the University of Northern 
Iowa through a program called Panthers on Parade, comprised of artistic embellishments of 
UNI’s mascot, TC, and displaying them in multiple locations in the community.   

 
Terms of Agreement 

 
1. Artwork: Artist shall provide a completed mascot embellishment (“Artwork”) that is 

unique and original in its design, accurately following the approved design shown in 
Attachment A.  No changes to the design will be made during production.  No 
manipulation in the original pose of the mascot will occur.  City will spray a protective 
clear coating consisting of clear automotive lacquer after TC delivery. 

 
2. Display of Artwork: Artwork will be on display in a location within Cedar Falls from 

approximately May 1, 2024 – October 27, 2024 ("Display Period"). 
 

3. Delivery and Installation of the Artwork: Artist shall pick up a blank, prefabricated mascot 
from a to be announced location in Cedar Falls on February 1, 2024, upon notification 
by the City’s Project Manager.  Artist shall complete artistic embellishment as provided 
in Paragraph 1 and deliver to a to be announced designated location in Cedar Falls by 
April 15, 2024.  If the Artwork and/or fiberglass form is not in substantially the same 
condition as shown on Attachment A, then this Agreement may be immediately 
terminated by City upon written notice to Artist, with no penalty or additional payment by 
City to Artist. 

 
4. Project Confidentiality:  Artist shall maintain confidentiality of the Artwork design until 

public launch, as notified by the City, including but not limited to any photos or video of 
work in progress or completed work to anyone via email, internet, social media, in-
person or other means prior to the public launch. 
 

5. Ownership of Artwork: Upon delivery, the Artwork shall be owned by the City and the 
corresponding mascot sponsor (“sponsor”).  At the end of the Display Period, the 
Sponsor may sell or dispose of the Artwork at their sole discretion. 

 
6. Insurance & Liability: From the time the blank mascot is picked up by the Artist until the 

time it is delivered to the City, the Artist is responsible for the value of the 
mascot/Artwork and any damages.  Artist accepts all liability for the safe application of 
their artwork to the mascot and shall provide a safe, weather and vandal resistant 
mascot, including any appurtenances to the mascot.  Artist is legally liable for structural 
additions shown in the design (Attachment A) that affect the mascot’s structural integrity.  
At the City’s direction and prior to executing any structural addition, the Artist may need 
to consult with the fabricator and provide written documentation confirming such change 

120

Item 19.



will not impact the structural integrity.  Upon delivery of the Artwork, it will be inspected 
to assure there are no damages to the mascot or Artwork and the Artwork then 
becomes the property of City.  After delivery, the City may choose to repair minor 
damages to the Artwork if the inspection determines any occurred, at the City’s expense 
and in its sole discretion.  The City and Sponsor (if applicable) shall be responsible for 
minor maintenance or repairs during the Display Period. 
 

7. Hold Harmless: The Artist agrees to hold harmless the City (for purposes of this 
Paragraph 7 includes elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents working 
on behalf of the City) against all actions, claims, liabilities, assertions of liability, losses, 
costs, and expenses whatsoever, in law or in equity, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees and expenses, which in any manner directly or indirectly may arise or be 
alleged to have arisen, from the installation, deinstallation, or display of the Artwork or 
as a result of the duties and obligations on the part of the Artist as required by this 
Agreement. 

 
8. Payment: City shall pay the Artist per mascot: $500 at time of mascot pick up by the 

Artist and an additional $1,500 upon delivery of the Artwork in satisfactory condition.  In 
no event shall more than $2,000 be paid to the Artist for each completed mascot. 

 
9. Motion Pictures, Television Productions, and Photographs: The Artist grants City 

permission to allow the Artist's Artwork to be included in any motion picture television 
production, and/or photographs, and/or other images taken in the City, and/or any 
marketing materials with no compensation paid to the Artist other than as provided in 
Paragraph 8 above. In addition, the artist grants permission to the production company 
and/or photographer to exhibit or disseminate all or any part of said film or photographs 
through any medium throughout the world. 

 
10. Independent Artist:  Nothing herein shall be construed to create an employer-employee 

relationship between the parties, and Artist remains an independent Artist through the 
term of this Agreement and is totally responsible for the Artist's materials, labor, costs, 
transportation and insurance. 

 
11. Assignment: No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Artist 

without the prior written consent of the City.   
 

12. Successors and Assigns: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of Artist, and Artist's heirs, beneficiaries, successors, and assigns. 

 
13. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, along with Attachment A,constitutes the entire 

agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter, and there are no promises 
or understandings between the parties except as set forth herein. 

 
14. Notices:  Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization 

required to be provided shall be given or provided to: 
 
City’s Project Manager: Artist: 
Name: Jennifer Pickar Name: ________________________ 
Title: Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager  Title: ________________________ 
Address: 6510 Hudson Road Address: ______________________ 
              Cedar Falls, IA 50613 ______________________ 
Telephone: 319-268-4266  Telephone: _____________________ 
Email: jennifer.pickar@cedarfalls.com  Email:_________________________  

 
 

Amelia Blue Gotera 
Artist “Bright Future” & Commencement TC

2304 Washington Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

ameliabgotera@gmail.com
319-290-0206

121

Item 19.



 
 
In Witness Whereof, the City and the Artist have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the last date listed below. 
 
ARTIST 
  
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name: _Amelia Blue Gotera  
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
By: __________________________________ 
        Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________ 
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 
  

122

Item 19.



Attachment A

 

Approved Design

 
 

Sponsored Design 1:

 
 

 
 

Sponsored Design 2:

 
 
 

123

Item 19.



124

Item 20.



125

Item 20.



126

Item 20.



127

Item 20.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
AND 

CAITLYN BARDLE 
FOR PANTHERS ON PARADE MASCOT EMBELLISHMENT 

 
 
This Agreement is by and between Caitlyn Bardle (“Artist”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Artist or the City below. 
 

 
Background Information 

 
City seeks to showcase the community’s pride and commitment to the University of Northern 
Iowa through a program called Panthers on Parade, comprised of artistic embellishments of 
UNI’s mascot, TC, and displaying them in multiple locations in the community.   

 
Terms of Agreement 

 
1. Artwork: Artist shall provide a completed mascot embellishment (“Artwork”) that is 

unique and original in its design, accurately following the approved design shown in 
Attachment A.  No changes to the design will be made during production.  No 
manipulation in the original pose of the mascot will occur.  City will spray a protective 
clear coating consisting of clear automotive lacquer after TC delivery. 

 
2. Display of Artwork: Artwork will be on display in a location within Cedar Falls from 

approximately May 1, 2024 – October 27, 2024 ("Display Period"). 
 

3. Delivery and Installation of the Artwork: Artist shall pick up a blank, prefabricated mascot 
from a to be announced location in Cedar Falls on February 1, 2024, upon notification 
by the City’s Project Manager.  Artist shall complete artistic embellishment as provided 
in Paragraph 1 and deliver to a to be announced designated location in Cedar Falls by 
April 15, 2024.  If the Artwork and/or fiberglass form is not in substantially the same 
condition as shown on Attachment A, then this Agreement may be immediately 
terminated by City upon written notice to Artist, with no penalty or additional payment by 
City to Artist. 

 
4. Project Confidentiality:  Artist shall maintain confidentiality of the Artwork design until 

public launch, as notified by the City, including but not limited to any photos or video of 
work in progress or completed work to anyone via email, internet, social media, in-
person or other means prior to the public launch. 
 

5. Ownership of Artwork: Upon delivery, the Artwork shall be owned by the City and the 
corresponding mascot sponsor (“sponsor”).  At the end of the Display Period, the 
Sponsor may sell or dispose of the Artwork at their sole discretion. 

 
6. Insurance & Liability: From the time the blank mascot is picked up by the Artist until the 

time it is delivered to the City, the Artist is responsible for the value of the 
mascot/Artwork and any damages.  Artist accepts all liability for the safe application of 
their artwork to the mascot and shall provide a safe, weather and vandal resistant 
mascot, including any appurtenances to the mascot.  Artist is legally liable for structural 
additions shown in the design (Attachment A) that affect the mascot’s structural integrity.  
At the City’s direction and prior to executing any structural addition, the Artist may need 
to consult with the fabricator and provide written documentation confirming such change 

128

Item 21.



129

Item 21.



130

Item 21.



Attachment A 
Approved Design 

 
 
 

 

131

Item 21.



132

Item 22.



133

Item 22.



134

Item 22.



Attachment A 
Approved Design 

 
 

 
*may include UNI above the number 

 

135

Item 22.



136

Item 23.



137

Item 23.



138

Item 23.



139

Item 23.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
AND 

JAYLIN VANDER WIEL
FOR PANTHERS ON PARADE MASCOT EMBELLISHMENT 

 
 
This Agreement is by and between Jaylin Vander Wiel (“Artist”) and the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa (“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Artist or the City below. 
 
 

Background Information 
 
City seeks to showcase the community’s pride and commitment to the University of Northern 
Iowa through a program called Panthers on Parade, comprised of artistic embellishments of 
UNI’s mascot, TC, and displaying them in multiple locations in the community.   

 
Terms of Agreement 

 
1. Artwork: Artist shall provide a completed mascot embellishment (“Artwork”) that is 

unique and original in its design, accurately following the approved design shown in 
Attachment A.  No changes to the design will be made during production.  No 
manipulation in the original pose of the mascot will occur.  City will spray a protective 
clear coating consisting of clear automotive lacquer after TC delivery. 

 
2. Display of Artwork: Artwork will be on display in a location within Cedar Falls from 

approximately May 1, 2024 – October 27, 2024 ("Display Period"). 
 

3. Delivery and Installation of the Artwork: Artist shall pick up a blank, prefabricated mascot 
from a to be announced location in Cedar Falls on February 1, 2024, upon notification 
by the City’s Project Manager.  Artist shall complete artistic embellishment as provided 
in Paragraph 1 and deliver to a to be announced designated location in Cedar Falls by 
April 15, 2024.  If the Artwork and/or fiberglass form is not in substantially the same 
condition as shown on Attachment A, then this Agreement may be immediately 
terminated by City upon written notice to Artist, with no penalty or additional payment by 
City to Artist. 

 
4. Project Confidentiality:  Artist shall maintain confidentiality of the Artwork design until 

public launch, as notified by the City, including but not limited to any photos or video of 
work in progress or completed work to anyone via email, internet, social media, in-
person or other means prior to the public launch. 
 

5. Ownership of Artwork: Upon delivery, the Artwork shall be owned by the City and the 
corresponding mascot sponsor (“sponsor”).  At the end of the Display Period, the 
Sponsor may sell or dispose of the Artwork at their sole discretion. 

 
6. Insurance & Liability: From the time the blank mascot is picked up by the Artist until the 

time it is delivered to the City, the Artist is responsible for the value of the 
mascot/Artwork and any damages.  Artist accepts all liability for the safe application of 
their artwork to the mascot and shall provide a safe, weather and vandal resistant 
mascot, including any appurtenances to the mascot.  Artist is legally liable for structural 
additions shown in the design (Attachment A) that affect the mascot’s structural integrity.  
At the City’s direction and prior to executing any structural addition, the Artist may need 
to consult with the fabricator and provide written documentation confirming such change 
will not impact the structural integrity.  Upon delivery of the Artwork, it will be inspected 
to assure there are no damages to the mascot or Artwork and the Artwork then 

140

Item 24.



will not impact the structural integrity.  Upon delivery of the Artwork, it will be inspected 
to assure there are no damages to the mascot or Artwork and the Artwork then 
becomes the property of City.  After delivery, the City may choose to repair minor 
damages to the Artwork if the inspection determines any occurred, at the City’s expense 
and in its sole discretion.  The City and Sponsor (if applicable) shall be responsible for 
minor maintenance or repairs during the Display Period. 
 

7. Hold Harmless: The Artist agrees to hold harmless the City (for purposes of this 
Paragraph 7 includes elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents working 
on behalf of the City) against all actions, claims, liabilities, assertions of liability, losses, 
costs, and expenses whatsoever, in law or in equity, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees and expenses, which in any manner directly or indirectly may arise or be 
alleged to have arisen, from the installation, deinstallation, or display of the Artwork or 
as a result of the duties and obligations on the part of the Artist as required by this 
Agreement. 

 
8. Payment: City shall pay the Artist $500 at time of mascot pick up by the Artist and an 

additional $1,500 upon delivery of the Artwork in satisfactory condition.  In no event shall 
more than $2,000 be paid to the Artist. 

 
9. Motion Pictures, Television Productions, and Photographs: The Artist grants City 

permission to allow the Artist's Artwork to be included in any motion picture television 
production, and/or photographs, and/or other images taken in the City, and/or any 
marketing materials with no compensation paid to the Artist other than as provided in 
Paragraph 8 above. In addition, the artist grants permission to the production company 
and/or photographer to exhibit or disseminate all or any part of said film or photographs 
through any medium throughout the world. 

 
10. Independent Artist:  Nothing herein shall be construed to create an employer-employee 

relationship between the parties, and Artist remains an independent Artist through the 
term of this Agreement and is totally responsible for the Artist's materials, labor, costs, 
transportation and insurance. 

 
11. Assignment: No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Artist 

without the prior written consent of the City.   
 

12. Successors and Assigns: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of Artist, and Artist's heirs, beneficiaries, successors, and assigns. 

 
13. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, along with Attachment A,constitutes the entire 

agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter, and there are no promises 
or understandings between the parties except as set forth herein. 

 
14. Notices:  Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization 

required to be provided shall be given or provided to: 
 
City’s Project Manager: Artist: 
Name: Jennifer Pickar Name: ________________________ 
Title: Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager  Title: ________________________ 
Address: 6510 Hudson Road Address: ______________________ 
              Cedar Falls, IA 50613 ______________________ 
Telephone: 319-268-4266  Telephone: _____________________ 
Email: jennifer.pickar@cedarfalls.com  Email:_________________________  

 
 

Jaylin Vander Wiel

2516 Olive St, Apt 2
 Cedar Falls, IA, 50613

641-660-9052
Jaylin.vanderwiel@gmail.com

141

Item 24.



 
 
In Witness Whereof, the City and the Artist have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the last date listed below. 
 
ARTIST 
  
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name: ___________________________________ 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
By: __________________________________ 
        Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________ 
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 
  

Jaylin Vander Wiel

142

Item 24.



Attachment A 
Approved Designs 

 
 

TC #1 
 

 
 

TC #2 
 

 

143

Item 24.



144

Item 25.



145

Item 25.



146

Item 25.



147

Item 25.



148

Item 26.



149

Item 26.



150

Item 26.



151

Item 26.



152

Item 27.



153

Item 27.



154

Item 27.



155

Item 27.



156

Item 28.



157

Item 28.



158

Item 28.



159

Item 28.



160

Item 29.



161

Item 29.



162

Item 29.



163

Item 29.



164

Item 30.



165

Item 30.



166

Item 30.



167

Item 30.



168

Item 31.



169

Item 31.



170

Item 31.



Attachment A 
Approved Designs 

 
ONE 

 
TWO 

 
 

THREE 

 
171

Item 31.



172

Item 32.



173

Item 32.



174

Item 32.



175

Item 32.



176

Item 33.



177

Item 33.



178

Item 33.



179

Item 33.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

+    

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 
  Brett Armstrong, EI, Engineer 

 DATE: December 18, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Ashworth North Final Plat   
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the final plat for Ashworth North Subdivision, Case 
#FP23-001  
 

PETITIONER: David Nicol, owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on the northwest corner of the intersection of Ashworth 
Drive and Hudson Road. 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The petitioner has submitted an application to final plat 1.96 acres in to seven (7) lots. The 
property is located on the northwest corner of the intersection of Ashworth Drive and Hudson 
Road.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The property is the remaining portion of a 3.07-acre parcel from which in April 2022, the City 
purchased the south 0.89-acre portion to complete Ashworth Drive, a critical connection 
between Prairie Winds 4th Addition and Hudson Road. The City Council approved a request to 
rezone this property to R-1 Residence District on May 15, 2023. On June 20, 2023, the City 
Council approved a request to vacate 1,724 square feet of Hudson Road right-of-way abutting 
the property which will be incorporated into Lot 7 of the final plat. On August 21, 2023, the City 
Council approve the conveyance of the right-of-way to Mr. Nicol and a preliminary plat request 
to divide approximately 2 acres into seven (7) lots. The construction of the street and most of 
the infrastructure was undertaken by the City, so the approval of a final plat was dependent on 
timing of the completion of the road project.  
 
ANALYSIS  

This subdivision is unusual as it does not include any public infrastructure within the boundaries 
of the plat. The City has already constructed the road and extended utilities to serve the seven 
lots within this plat. The owner/developer of the lots will be responsible for the installation of utility 

180

Item 34.



service lines to each residence and public sidewalks along that portion of Ashworth Drive abutting 
each lot as development occurs.   
 

 
 
The lots exceed the minimum lot size for the R-1 Residence District with an average lot size of 
approximately 11,950 square feet, similar in size to the adjacent lots in Prairie Winds 4th 
Addition. The front and rear setbacks are provided on the plat and are consistent with the R-1 
Residence District requirement of 30 feet. The side yard setbacks will be determined by the lot 
width as per the R-1 District requirements. 
 
This is an infill site and to ensure surface water flows to the 10-foot drainage easement at the 
rear of the lots, the entire site will have to be graded accordingly before the final plat can be 
approved. 
 
The applicant has supplied the required documents for approval of the final plat including a final 
draft of a Deed of Dedication which addresses all the required obligations of the 
owner/developer, such as sidewalk installation and common area maintenance.  
 
The City Code states that the final plat must be in substantial conformance with the preliminary 
plat. Staff finds that the proposed final plat is conforming with the preliminary plat and 
associated conditions. 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS 
A final plat that is consistent with the preliminary plat can be approved once all the public 
infrastructure is completed; in this case, the City has constructed the public infrastructure to 

181

Item 34.



serve this subdivision. Staff has reviewed and found the final plat is consistent with the City 
Code and the approved preliminary plat and has recommended approval to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission with the condition that the entire site be graded to ensure that it drains as 
shown on the final plat.  Mr. Nicol has hired a contractor and anticipates the grading will be 
complete by Friday, December 15, 2023, prior to City Council consideration.  
 
The property owner, Mr. Nicol, entered into an agreement to sell the subdivided ground before 
January 1, 2024, anticipating the completion of the street this fall based on the City’s 
construction schedule.  Due to unanticipated delays, the City’s contractor was not able to 
complete the construction in time to allow Mr. Nicol the opportunity for final plat review by 
Planning and Zoning in November. Therefore, Mr. Nicol has asked to have the plat reviewed by 
both P&Z and Council before January 1, 2024, so he can meet the terms of the agreement with 
his buyer. The Planning and Zoning Commission is scheduled to consider the final plat at their 
meeting on December 13.  With the Council packet being published earlier in the day on 
December 13, it is not possible to include the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 
recommendation in this staff report.   
 
Staff will report any discussion and the action taken by the Planning and Zoning, and the status 
of the grading work to the Council at the meeting on December 18, 2023.     
 
NEIGHBOR NOTICE 
A courtesy notice was mailed to nearby property owners on December 6, 2023. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, notes the following: 

 The submitted Deed of Dedication for this final plat has addressed all the necessary 
requirements; 

 The applicant must complete the final grading of the entire site before the Final Plat is 
approved by City Council; 

 Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the final plat for the Ashworth Drive 
development. Water & gas utility services are available in accordance with the service 
policies of CFU. Electric and communications utility services will be installed on the north 
side of Ashworth Drive in the spring of 2024. Additional grading of the property (north of 
the south property line in the utility easement area) will need to take place prior to the 
installation of electric and communication services. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff has reviewed the final plat for Ashworth North Subdivision (FP23-001) and recommends 
approval, subject to:  

1) Approval by the Planning & Zoning Commission at their December 13, 2023, 
meeting with any specific comments or direction. 

2) Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements.  

 

Attachments:   Location map 
  Final Plat 
  Deed of Dedication 

182

Item 34.



Cedar Falls City Council 

December 18, 2023

Location 

Map

Ashworth North Final Plat 

Hudson Road and Ashworth Drive

Lot 1

Ashworth North Final Plat

Lot 2 Lot 3 Lot 5Lot 4 Lot 6 Lot 7

183

Item 34.



184

Item 34.



185

Item 34.



186

Item 34.



187

Item 34.



188

Item 34.



189

Item 34.



190

Item 34.



191

Item 34.



192

Item 35.



193

Item 35.



194

Item 35.



195

Item 35.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS – Engineering Division 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: December 18th, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 1 
  Union Road Reconstruction from W. 27th St. to University Ave. Project 
  Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3238 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No.1 with Foth Infrastructure and 
Environment, LLC which outlines the scope of services and costs for additional sanitary sewer 
extension, design of a roundabout at the intersection of Union Road and W. 27th, and 
realignment at the intersection of Union Road and University Avenue for the segment of Union 
Road from W. 27th Street to University Avenue. This corridor reconstruction aims to 
reconstruct Union Road from a rural cross section to an urban cross-section by filling in the 
rural ditches and adding storm sewer and curb and gutter. 
 
The enclosed agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC provides for the 
additional design for the corridor. The fees of this agreement are based on hourly rates and 
fixed expenses and shall not exceed the total amount of $87,984.00.  
 
This project is planned to be split into two phases with the first phase of construction to be 
constructed during the 2024 construction season. The first phase of construction will include 
reconstructing the northern box culvert and the sanitary extension. This agreement will be 
paid for using General Obligation Bonds that will be sold in the upcoming bond cycle. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration and 
approval of this Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environment, 
LLC for the Union Road Reconstruction from W. 27th Street to University Avenue project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

196

Item 36.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls  

220 Clay Street  

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   

www.cedarfalls.com  
 

Engineering Division 

Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
 

Union Road Reconstruction: W. 27th St to University Ave 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number RC-000-3238  
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC (Consultant), of 411 6th Avenue SE, Suite 400, Cedar Rapids, 
IA 50401 dated June 15, 2020 for design contractor services for the Union Road Reconstruction project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to include Compensation for 
additional items required as a part of the Union Road Reconstruction project,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

1. Additional Sanitary Sewer: The Consultant will perform design analysis to extend existing sanitary sewer 

system south to serve five properties on the west side of Union, south of existing sanitary sewer trunk line. 

Includes plan preparation and inclusion in final plan set. 

2. Add roundabout at the intersection of Union Road/27th Street into project: Consultant will complete final design 

of intersection geometry, alignments, profiles, and plan preparation and include the intersection design in final 

plan set. 

3. Alignment revisions at the intersection of Union Road and University Avenue: Consultant will look at options 

to improve alignment skew at this intersection and upon approval by city include intersection revisions in final 

plan set.  

 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total compensation is a not 
to exceed fee of Eighty-Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Eight-Four Dollars ($87,984) for the Scope 
of Services item I. The compensation for this supplemental agreement will be added to the original 
agreement amount.   
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated June 15, 2020.  

 

197

Item 36.



Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC  Union Road Reconstruction: W. 27th St to University 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. RC – 000 – 3238 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:                  
 
 

Title:  Title:                               
 
 

Date:  Date:  

198

Item 36.

APM
Text Box
Aaron Moniza

APM
Image

APM
Text Box
Senior Client Manager

APM
Text Box
10/25/2023



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
             TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), AICP, City Planner I 

 DATE: December 18, 2023 

 SUBJECT: To set a public hearing for the Land Use Map Amendment (LU23-002) and rezoning 
request for property located North of Aldrich Elementary School and South of W. 
Greenhill Road (RZ23-003)  

 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Amend Future Land Use Map from Low Density Residential Use, Greenways 
and Floodplain Use, and Neighborhood Commercial & Mixed Use to Low 
Density Residential Use and adjust the Greenways and Floodplain Use  
(LU23-002) 
Rezone property from R-1 Residence District and MU Mixed Use Residential 
District to RP Planned Residence District (RZ23-003) 
 

PETITIONER Brent Dahlstrom, Owner; Panther Builders LLC, Applicant 
 

LOCATION: 
 

54.79 acres of land located North of Aldrich Elementary School and  
South of W. Greenhill Road 

 
Brent Dahlstrom is requesting to amend the Future 
Land Use Map and to rezone approximately 54.79 
acres of land located North of Aldrich Elementary 
School and South of W. Greenhill Road to RP 
Planned Residence District from R-1 Residence 
District and MU Mixed Use Residential District. See 
the attached location map image to the right for 
reference. The Future Land Use Map amendment 
includes designating the area including the subject 
property as “Low-Density Residential” and adjusting 
“Greenways and Floodplain” from “Neighborhood 
Commercial & Mixed Use”, “Greenways and 
Floodplain Use” and “Low-Density Residential”. 
 
 
 

199

Item 37.



As per City code, the RP Planned Residence District requires the submittal of a Master Plan to 
show the overall development plan, including the intended uses, development pattern, and any 
special features or standards, and the submittal of developmental procedures agreement to 
establish the agreed upon standards and conditions for the development. An RP Master Plan 
for the site has been submitted for review, which shows that the proposed subdivision will be 
developed with detached single-family units and will be completed in four phases. The 
proposed development will be built with a 30-foot rear yard setback, a 5-foot side yard setback, 
and a 25-foot front yard setback. See the below image for more reference. 
 

With this RP Master Plan proposal, the proposed subdivision will address three critical street 
connections including the extension of Arbors Drive northward, Richard Road westward, and 
Ironwood Drive northward as shown in the master plan in Phase 1 of the project, thus allowing 
distribution of traffic within the neighborhood and alternative routes to and from the Aldrich 
Elementary School. 
 
The proposed rezoning request is not consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan; 
therefore, the applicant is also proposing to make changes to the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
to amend the Future Land Use Map in the City’s Comprehensive Plan document from “Low-
Density Residential Use”, “Greenways & Floodplain Use” and “Neighborhood Commercial and 
Mixed Use” to “Low-Density Residential Use” and adjust “Greenways & Floodplain Use”. The 
proposed adjustment of Greenways & Floodplain Use will align better with the stream corridor 
with enough space for a future public trail as per the intent of the Greenways & Floodplain Use 
in the City’s Comprehensive Plan document. The applicant mentions that the proposed 

200

Item 37.



amendment will be consistent with the surrounding low-density residential use and as per 
market needs, and the single-family lots are more urgent and appealing to current neighbors. 
The proposed land use change will allow the applicant to make changes to proceed with the 
development of a residential subdivision as per the proposed RP Master Plan, as the current 
land use designation does not align with the zone and use of the land. Amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map will be needed before rezoning the subject property to ensure its 
compliance with the comprehensive plan. 
 
The proposed rezoning change will allow the owner to proceed with the submittal of a 
preliminary plat for a new subdivision, which will be consistent with the proposed RP Master 
Plan for the area and proceed with development.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
At the meeting on November 21, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing and recommended approval of the proposed amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
and the rezoning.  
 
Therefore, staff now requests that the City Council set a public hearing date for January 2, 
2024, to formally consider the following requests: 

1. Set public hearing for January 2, 2024, to discuss the proposed amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map in the City’s Comprehensive Plan document from “Low Density 
Residential Use”, “Greenways and Floodplain Use” and “Neighborhood Commercial & 
Mixed Use” to “Low Density Residential Use” and adjust the “Greenways and Floodplain 
Use”. (LU23-002) 

2. Set public hearing for January 2, 2024, to discuss the proposed rezoning request to 
change the zoning of subject property from R-1 Residence District and MU Mixed Use 
Residential District to RP Planned Residence District. (RZ23-003) 

 
A detailed staff report with all attachments and summary report of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meetings will be provided to the City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 

    
 

201

Item 37.



202

Item 37.



tes
t

LEIGH LN

RICHARD RD

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
 D

R

ED
EN

 W
Y

BLYTHE BLVD

A
R
BO

R
S 

D
R

ASHWORTH DR

GREENHILL RD.

UNIVER
SIT

Y AVE.

1 of 1

R
EZ

O
N

IN
G

 P
LA

T
 E

X
H

IB
IT

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T

PA
N

T
H

ER
 B

U
IL

D
ER

'S
6
1
6
 C

LA
Y
 S

T
C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S,
 I
A

 5
0
6
1
3

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T

PN
: 
0
8
8

10/06/2023203

Item 37.



11/14/2023

LEGEND

ARBORS DRIVE

A
RB

O
RS

 D
RI

V
E

MADELINE STREET MADELINE STREET

JO
SE

PH
 D

R
IV

E

JOSEPH DRIVE

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
 R

-P
 M

A
ST

ER
 P

LA
N

PA
N

T
H

ER
 F

A
R
M

S,
 L

LC
PN

: 
  
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 #

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

S

BENNETT LANE

N
A

T
H

A
N

 L
A

N
E

PH
ASE

 1

PH
ASE

 2

PH
ASE

 3

PH
ASE

 4

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

A-1

R-P

RICHARD ROAD

1 of 1

 BUILDING TYPES

 BUILDING SETBACKS 

UNIVER
SIT

Y AVEN
UE

RICHARD
ROAD

ED
EN

 W
A

Y

LEIGH
LANE

ANDY
AVE.

BLYTHE
BLVD.

GREENHILL ROAD

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
D

R
IV

E

204

Item 37.



205

Item 39.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 12/18/23 COUNCIL MEETING



206

Item 39.



207

Item 39.



208

Item 39.



209

Item 39.



210

Item 39.



211

Item 39.



212

Item 39.



213

Item 39.



214

Item 39.



215

Item 39.



216

Item 39.



217

Item 39.



218

Item 39.



219

Item 39.



220

Item 39.



221

Item 39.



222

Item 39.



223

Item 39.



224

Item 39.



225

Item 39.



226

Item 39.



227

Item 39.



228

Item 39.



229

Item 39.



230

Item 39.



231

Item 39.



232

Item 39.



233

Item 39.



234

Item 39.



235

Item 39.



236

Item 39.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 12/18/23 MEETING



237

Item 39.



238

Item 39.



239

Item 39.



240

Item 39.



241

Item 39.



242

Item 39.



243

Item 39.



244

Item 39.



245

Item 39.



246

Item 39.



247

Item 39.



248

Item 39.



249

Item 39.



250

Item 39.



251

Item 39.



252

Item 39.



253

Item 39.



254

Item 39.



255

Item 39.



256

Item 39.



257

Item 39.



258

Item 39.



259

Item 39.



260

Item 39.



261

Item 39.



262

Item 39.



263

Item 39.



264

Item 39.



265

Item 39.



266

Item 39.



267

Item 39.



268

Item 39.



269

Item 39.



270

Item 39.



271

Item 39.



272

Item 39.



273

Item 39.



274

Item 39.



275

Item 39.



276

Item 39.



277

Item 39.



278

Item 39.



279

Item 39.



280

Item 39.



281

Item 39.



282

Item 39.



283

Item 39.



284

Item 39.



285

Item 39.



286

Item 39.



287

Item 39.



288

Item 39.



289

Item 39.



290

Item 39.



291

Item 39.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes-December 4, 2023
	231204MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH-FY2024 Budget Amendment
	1 Budget Amend #1 Memo
	2 FY24 Budget Amend No1 PH Notice
	3 FY24 Budget Amend No1

	Item 3.	Ord. 3046-Installation of post indicator valves
	1. Chief Memo to City Attorney regarding PIV location
	2. Ordinance Fire Code Amendment
	3. Ordinance Fire Code Amendment-Final-Joanne

	Item 4.	Standing Committee Meeting Minutes 12/04/2023
	12-04-2023 Standing Committee Minutes

	Item 5.	Boards & Commissions Appts
	2022-12-12_BEA_ReAppointBjerkeMott
	2023-12-12_BMA_ReAppoint_Gardner
	2023-12-12_BPA_ReAppointGruberTink

	Item 6.	Resignation-Boards & Commissions
	Robert Wright Resignation

	Item 7.	Admin. Policies-Reformatted and Renumbered
	2023-12-12_AdminPoliciesCoverLetter
	Admin Policies Reformatted and Renumbered

	Item 8.	Receive Abstract of Votes
	Abstract of Votes

	Item 9.	Retail alcohol 12-18-23
	Retail alcohol 12-18-23

	Item 11.	CFD 1007: Admin Policy
	2023-12-12_SMIMgmtCoverLetter
	CFD 1007.XX - Admin Policy - Standard Municipal Index Management

	Item 12.	CFD 1020: Admin Policy
	2023-12-12_PolicyFormatCoverLetter
	CFD 1020.XX - Admin Policy - Formatting of City Policies

	Item 13.	Authorized Signatories for Financial Accounts & Vehicles
	1 Authorized Signers Resolution memo Dec2023
	2 Res Authorized Signatures

	Item 14.	Brycer Agreement-Public Safety
	Brycer-memo
	3737_001
	2445_001

	Item 15.	Brycer Agreement-Fee Schedule
	Filing fee schedule
	Resolution approving fee schedule for filing fire code compliance reports

	Item 16.	a. Artist Agreement Alex Miller for Panthers on Parade
	1. Memo to Mayor and Council 12-18-2023 (1)
	Artist Agreement Alex Miller

	Item 17.	b. Artist Agreement Amanda Stout for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement AmandaStout

	Item 18.	c. Artist Agreement Amber Wegner for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Amber Wegner

	Item 19.	d. Artist Agreement Amelia Gotera for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Amelia Gotera

	Item 20.	e. Artist Agreement Bret Miller for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Bret Miller

	Item 21.	f. Artist Agreement Caitlyn Bardle for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Caitlyn Bardle

	Item 22.	g. Artist Agreement Casey Slack for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Casey Slack

	Item 23.	h. Artist Agreement Chad McKinzie for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Chad McKinzie

	Item 24.	i. Artist Agreement Jaylin Vander Wiel for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Jaylin Vander Wiel

	Item 25.	j. Artist Agreement Leah Runyan for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Leah Runyan

	Item 26.	k. Artist Agreement Karin Desnoyers for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Karin Desnoyers

	Item 27.	I. Artist Agreement Mary Ingamells for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Mary Ingamells

	Item 28.	m. Artist Agreement Rachel Heine for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Rachel Heine

	Item 29.	n. Artist Agreement Rachael Rose Smith for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Rachael Rose Smith

	Item 30.	o. Artist Agreement Salina Gavin for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Salina Gavin

	Item 31.	p. Artist Agreement Sara Fitzgerald for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Sara Fitzgerald

	Item 32.	q. Artist Agreement Stephanie Fever for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Stephanie Fever

	Item 33.	r. Artist Agreement Susan Rolinger for Panthers on Parade
	Artist Agreement Susan Rolinger

	Item 34.	Final Plat-Ashworth North Subdivision
	1 - Ashworth North Final Staff report 12-11-23
	2 - Location Map
	3 - Final Plat 12-6-2023
	4 -Deed of Dedication

	Item 35.	Repair and Purchase of Lift Station Pumps
	CC Memo & Quotes WRF Pumps

	Item 36.	Professional Service Agreement No. 1 for Union Road Reconstruction from W 27th to University Ave.
	1. PSA Memo - Union Road Recon from W. 27th to University
	2. Supplemental Agreement 1_RC-000-3238_Union Road - Signed

	Item 37.	Set PH-Amend Land Use Map
	1. CC Memo Rezoning for Panther West
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. PantherWestAddn - RezoningPlatExhibit updated
	4. 2023_1114 - MasterPlan(Rezoning) revised

	Item 39.	Bills and Claims-12/18/23
	1 Daily Invoices 121823
	2 Council Invoices 121823

	Bottom

